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ContentS ViSion, MiSSion AnD CorporAte VAlueS 

ViSion

“Be the lead iCt agency to enable public sector service delivery.”

MiSSion

“to render an efficient and value-added iCt service to the public sector in a secure, cost-effective and integrated 

manner, contributing to service delivery and citizen convenience.”

CorporAte VAlueS

in seeking to promote its vision and mission in the context of good governance, SitA has developed and 

promotes the following values: 

Service excellence –  We shall strive to attain internationally recognised standards of service quality   �

and maintain continuous improvement in service delivery;

innovation –  We shall pursue innovation by demonstrating thought leadership and  �

proactive behaviour on the use of information and communication technology 

to enhance public service delivery;

transparency  –  We shall always ensure transparency in everything we do in order to build trust  �

and confidence with all our stakeholders;

integrity  –  We shall conduct our business with integrity at all times to inculcate a culture  �

of honesty, respect and accountability amongst all our employees;

Fairness  –  We shall treat all our partners, our suppliers and our employees with fairness  �

and equity at all times; and

prudence  –  We shall exercise prudence and economy in running the business of SitA and  �

in pursuance of its goals and the objectives of government.
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tHe YeAr unDer reVieW: April 2009 – MArCH 2010

enABlinG puBliC SeCtor
SerViCe DeliVerY”

“tHe leAD

ICT AGENCY

ViSion, MiSSion AnD CorporAte VAlueS – cont.

Citizen Convenience

Increased Productivity
Lower Cost

ICT Integration ICT OperationsICT Planning
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MAndAte

the State information technology Agency (proprietary) limited (SitA) was established in 1999 to consolidate 

and coordinate the South African government’s information technology (it) resources in order to achieve cost 

savings through economies of scale, increased delivery capabilities and enhanced interoperability of systems. 

SitA is committed to leveraging it as a strategic resource for government, managing the it procurement and 

delivery process to ensure that government receives value for money, and using it to support the delivery of 

e-Government services to all citizens. 

SitA is governed by the SitA Act no. 88 of 1998, as amended by the SitA Act no. 38 of 2002. Section 6 of this 

Act states the objectives of the agency as follows:

to improve service delivery to the public through the provision of it, information systems and  �

related services, in a maintained information system security environment, to government 

departments and public bodies; and

to promote the efficiency of departments and public bodies through the use of it. �

Furthermore, the Act separates SitA’s services into mandatory services (services that SitA must provide) and 

non-mandatory services (services that SitA may provide). SitA remains committed in all its activities to adhere 

to government’s ‘iCt House of Value’, which seeks to leverage economies of scale, enhance interoperability of 

government systems security, eliminate duplication and enhance black economic empowerment (Bee).

ICt House of VAlue
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over the past few years, South African citizens have come to expect more from 

government and are calling for visible improvement in the quality and speed of 

public sector service delivery. now, more than ever, South Africans are demanding 

an efficient, effective and development-oriented public service. president Zuma, 

in his State of the nation Address in February 2010, urged the public sector to 

work “faster, harder and smarter” in order to meet these expectations. Another 

directive was that the administration should continuously strive to understand the 

needs, desires and expectations of the people of our country. 

the role of the State information technology Agency (SitA) is central to leveraging 

information communication technology (iCt) as a strategic resource in order to 

support public sector development and citizen convenience. Core to the public 

sector’s capacity to deliver the required services is SitA’s mandate to provide 

government with iCt and iCt related services in a maintained information systems 

security environment. in delivering on its mandate, the technology procured by 

SitA for government, through economies of scale, must enable government departments to function more 

effectively and contribute to public sector modernisation. 

Working in tandem with this modernisation, iCts must be used innovatively to improve service delivery to 

citizens, and ensure value for government’s iCt investment. Furthermore, in line with the Batho pele principles, 

iCt use and spend must be a driver that contributes to public service development in a way that demonstrates 

practically to citizens that government is putting people first through all areas of its work. therefore, iCt and 

its ability to enable a more efficient and effective government will drive SitA’s strategy, operations and models 

for delivery.

turnArounD StrAteGY

A priority for the 2009/10 financial year was to address the challenges facing SitA in relation to its progress in 

achieving the objectives formulated more than ten years ago when SitA was conceived. As the Shareholder, 

government developed a turnaround framework representing a business case for SitA’s transformation against 

the backdrop of its mandate and founding principles. 

A task team comprising of the Department of public Service and Administration (DpSA), Department of 

Communication (DoC), Department of Defence (DoD) and State Security and Government information 

technology officers Council (GitoC) was established to develop the turnaround framework. Following the 

approval of this framework by Cabinet in March 2010, the SitA Board was strengthened with the appointment 

of additional members to enhance executive oversight of the institution.

Furthermore, working differently for an efficient, effective and development-oriented public service is the 

foundation from which to build on the turnaround framework. As we create a SitA for today, tomorrow and 

the future, a key element to be addressed through the SitA turnaround includes SitA’s transformation from 

a procurement service to a holistic and decentralised supply chain management service. A base has also been 

established from which to create a new client relationship management approach, with improved services and 

quality of service as the heartbeat of its service delivery. 

Given the overall change in the public iCt sector space, re-engineering and building SitA to support government’s 

strategic objectives became essential for its continued relevance to government.

StrenGtHeninG puBliC SerViCe tHrouGH iCts

the year under review also marked a decade of existence for SitA, since its establishment in 1999. Although 

the agency has contributed significantly to the public sector by means of its iCt solutions and programmes 

implemented since its inception, more can and must be done. 

improving systems security within government is a priority and represents one of the pillars of the iCt House of 

Value. During this financial year, a team consisting of members from the national intelligence Agency, electronic 

Communications Security, the Special investigation unit, SitA and the DpSA assessed the security gaps in various 

government departments and identified the need for improved security controls on critical iCt infrastructure 

and applications. 

Following this assessment, a draft government-wide iCt Security Governance Framework and iCt Security 

Standards blueprint were developed. Amongst others, the framework will ensure adequate access control 

measures to protect information and iCt resources from loss, data corruption, unauthorised use or viewing, 

as well as denial of service. in the improvement of government information systems, standardisation of 

government’s iCt environment is critical. in the arena of government iCt security, standardisation and compliance 

are essential to mitigate key risks. the information security standards provide a framework for best practice 

across all government departments and will minimise risks and ensure effective responsiveness to all incidents.  

these security standards will ensure that government’s information and information systems are protected from 

unauthorised access, modification, disclosure and/or destruction.

the Government-Wide enterprise Architecture (GWeA) framework, developed by SitA to set the minimum 

standard by which to use an enterprise Architecture approach, will also enhance coherence and standardisation 

of iCt plans and blueprints across government. SitA’s support to Government information technology officers 

(Gitos) on the GWeA framework and the development of Master Systems plans (MSps) – to identify possible 

solutions and opportunities for the use of iCts in government – is ongoing. the objective of this exercise is to 

ForeWorD BY tHe MiniSter
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ForeWorD BY tHe MiniSter – cont.

tightly align the solution architectures emerging from GWeA with the strategic objectives of the respective 

government departments. this approach will ensure better planning by government departments and will 

provide SitA with a better understanding of government’s requirements. Moreover, it will also result in proactive 

identification of solutions to improve service delivery.

As part of government modernisation, the integrated Financial Management System (iFMS) reached an important 

milestone in March 2010, with the launch of the Asset register release 1.1 by national treasury. the Asset 

register forms part of the broader Supply Chain Management module of iFMS. upon completion, the iFMS 

project will replace the current legacy transversal applications, including the Basic Accounting System (BAS), the 

personnel and Salary System (perSAl) and the logistics Management System (loGiS).

one of the consequences of the global recession was that government spend was subjected to heightened 

scrutiny. Given government’s huge iCt investment in the public sector, cost-effectiveness (including capitalising 

on its spending power to reduce the cost of iCt solutions, services and products) became the order of the day. 

Measures identified to realise iCt cost savings for national and provincial government departments included:

improved iCt asset management; �  

Configuration management;  �

improved software asset management to achieve economies of scale; and �  

Sustainable iCt. �

next GenerAtion e-GoVernMent SerViCeS

the focus of iCt interventions to ensure synergy, integration and access remains an important priority for 

government, as it prioritises citizen convenience. e-Government is often punted as the realisation of a citizen-

centred service delivery and a hallmark of integrated service delivery where services provided are built around 

the citizen. As the shareholder, we are currently engaging with national and provincial governments on the 

implementation of the next phase in e-Government. For now, an agreement has been reached on a proposal 

to develop a prototype of a transversal e-Government platform. the platform is transactional in nature and will 

automate and e-enable six pro-poor services in the Social and Justice Cluster, which include applications for birth 

registrations, identity documents, foster care grants, old age pensions, maintenance orders, and death notices.

extenDinG SerViCe DeliVerY tHrouGH tHuSonG SerViCe CentreS

the accessibility of government departments’ service points to communities living in some of the poorest, 

most underdeveloped and rural areas of the country was assessed. this study identified geographical areas 

where access needs to be improved, additional service delivery points created, mobile services deployed, or 

new thusong Service Centres (tSCs) established. tSCs are integrated service centres aimed at bringing relevant 

and much needed services to people in remote areas. Furthermore, the programme scope of providing general 

service counters to tSCs was extended to include centralised infrastructure and local area network requirements. 

A security work stream has been brought on board to ensure that it security governance frameworks are 

applied, managed and monitored. Currently, there are 139 tSCs across the country and plans are in place to 

introduce these centres into urban areas as well. to this end, a pilot project is being run from Maponya Mall 

in Soweto. 

Another milestone during the year was the iCt support rendered by SitA in developing and supporting the 

presidential Hotline. this hotline represents a significant step towards providing South Africans with direct access 

to the highest office in the country, as well as an opportunity to improve the interaction between government 

and its people. 

in conclusion, and on behalf of government, i wish to extend our gratitude and appreciation to the Chairperson 

of the Board, Ms Zodwa Manase and all the Board Members for their oversight role played in creating a new 

and improved SitA. Furthermore, i would also like to acknowledge SitA for their contribution in working with 

government to improve its service delivery capabilities.

Mr. Masenyani Richard Baloyi
Minister of public Service and Administration 
August 2010
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SECTION 1 – perForMAnCe oVerVieW



12
AnnuAl RepoRt 2010

13
AnnuAl RepoRt 2010

the 2009/10 financial year will be remembered as one of the most significant 

in the history of SitA as we celebrated our 10th anniversary and shifted gears 

in preparation for SitA’s turnaround. When SitA was formed, its objectives 

were to achieve increased productivity in the public sector; reduce the cost 

of service delivery; ensure inter-operability of government iCt systems; 

achieve better security of data, information and access; remove unnecessary 

duplication; realise economies of scale and promote access to government and 

citizen convenience.

in celebrating a decade of existence, we utilised the opportunity to assess 

the road travelled to meet these expectations. We also explored ways in 

which we could improve on our performance in order to achieve all of the 

said objectives. Central to the response received was the role of SitA as an 

enabler – not merely an agency with a regulatory or provisioning role, but one 

that has brought with it recognised iCt expertise and leadership in support of  

 government’s vision. 

SitA is ever mindful of the fact that it should provide value for money and efficiency in its service delivery to 

government, while ensuring inter-operability and security of government information, as these elements also 

represent the pillars of the iCt House of Value.

From a Board perspective, it is crucial that SitA remains responsive to the expectations of our shareholder, 

stakeholders and clients, and that the organisation delivers on its values of service excellence, transparency, 

integrity, fairness, prudence and innovation. to this end, a new focus was adopted to engage with our 

stakeholders and to determine whether the agency was fulfilling its mandate and service delivery promise to the 

satisfaction of our stakeholders. 

During the year, the Board endorsed the review of SitA as part of the legwork to be performed prior to the 

implementation of the turnaround strategy, which in part sought to address concerns from stakeholders. these 

included the need to revise SitA’s business and operating models and the strategic management of resources 

for improved service delivery to government.

SitA found itself having to deal with the need for enhanced service delivery from its clients, whilst at the same 

time mitigating the risks flowing from the impact of the global economic recession.

SitA’s mixed record of successes and challenges clearly signified the importance of change to ensure shareholder 

confidence and client satisfaction. 

on the other hand, the prevailing economic climate highlighted the need for the introduction of rigorous 

financial controls and tight monitoring of budgets to ensure that SitA works smarter to deliver more with less. 

expenditure was reviewed and a company-wide operational budget cut was introduced. 

Within the context of fiscal discipline, SitA too had to rise to the occasion to reduce government’s cost of doing 

business. new protocols to leverage economies of scale in the procurement of goods, services and solutions on 

behalf of government were instituted. A review of SitA’s pricing and costing structures, its license Management 

Strategy and it Asset Management Strategy represented important components of this work. Strategic discussions 

regarding the implementation of a relevant agency framework for the organisation are ongoing.

From engagements with various SitA stakeholders, it also emerged that there is a real need to enhance SitA’s 

customer relationship management and engagements with our business partners at both national and provincial 

level. High-level engagements with SitA stakeholders proved to be invaluable in assisting us to chart the way 

forward. Key service-related issues will be addressed by the implementation of a SitA Customer relationship 

Management (CrM) system in order to improve the organisation’s responsiveness.

As indicated earlier, the need to improve our responsiveness to service requests and to meet our clients’ 

expectations remains a high priority area. in this respect, it is critical that SitA’s procurement arm is repositioned 

so that it can be responsive to client needs without sacrificing sound corporate governance principles. to counter 

this area of weakness, the procurement portal where users can register requests and monitor progress, is being 

implemented to ensure improved efficiency.

A key concern targeted for improvement was turnaround times in the procurement process. the SitA database 

of suppliers, its management and the inconsistencies in the transversal tender engagement model were also 

earmarked for change.

 on meeting the key strategic objective of modernising public service operations, we have achieved some important 

milestones. the e-Government Centre of excellence (e-Coe) was established, the portal was enhanced, content 

updated and partnerships initiated on e-Government. Furthermore, the completed e-Government Strategic 

Framework has the potential to cut costs of service delivery by government, while increasing convenience and 

improving accessibility. 

During the course of the financial year, SitA was registered as a first-tier Wireless Application Service provider 

(WASp). this will allow the organisation to increase citizen access to services through wireless applications, 

including cellular phones. 

CHAirperSon’S StAteMent
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the iFMS Finance Model and Cost recovery Model are 85% complete and the iFMS repository for all project 

documents is 70% complete. As the prime Systems integrator on the iFMS project, the launch of the iFMS 

Asset register release 1.1 by national treasury during the latter part of the financial year was a significant 

development for SitA. this module forms part of the broader Supply Chain Management module of iFMS. 

to extend SitA’s service footprint and ensure SitA’s engagement in areas of need, local government emerged 

as a real pressure point. At issue is the challenge of meeting service delivery expectations of citizens using the 

strained resources within municipalities. Much as SitA’s mandate only provides for compulsory engagement at 

provincial and national government level, based on SitA’s relevance and government needs, we have initiated 

support to local government. 

During the financial year, eleven (11) municipalities were clustered to share resources as part of a pilot project. 

this exercise yielded fruitful lessons and valuable experience as far as meeting the needs of local government 

was concerned. one of the lessons is that local government can greatly benefit from SitA’s Free and open 

Software (FoSS) implementation, since many municipalities have underdeveloped iCt infrastructure and lack the 

necessary funding for software licences. 

Furthermore, exploiting Mobizen technology also represents a potentially valuable intervention in this sphere. 

M-Government is a functional subset of an all inclusive e-Government, which provides citizens with unique 

opportunities through freedom of mobile access to services and information, literally from any place at any 

time, 24 hours of the day. this technology enjoys preference since the majority of South Africans have access to 

cellphones as opposed to a computer with internet access.

Skills deficiencies within the iCt sector remain an area of concern for SitA. to redress this shortcoming, SitA has 

established a Skills Academy and repositioned its Youth internship programme (Yip) as a Youth Development 

programme, thus demonstrating a strategic change in focus. the work towards empowering youth from previously 

disadvantaged backgrounds and absorbing them into the iCt industry continues through this initiative.

As part of our undertaking to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance, SitA is committed 

to meeting all the necessary requirements of the public Finance Management Act (pFMA) and associated 

regulations to ensure that the organisation retains an unqualified audit from the Auditor-General at the close of 

this challenging financial year. 

Finally, whilst we acknowledge the contributions made by SitA during the year, we are also mindful of 

government’s intimation that SitA needs to improve its performance.

Following the lead given to us by the Honourable Minister richard Baloyi, the playing field was created for 

SitA’s turnaround strategy to be implemented in the new financial year. this strategy has the potential to 

change the course, pace and configuration of the organisation to ensure optimal performance by this 

important institution.

noting that this was a challenging year for the organisation, on behalf of the Board of Directors of SitA, i  would 

like to express our thanks to the Honourable Minister Baloyi for his visionary leadership, commitment and 

support provided to the Board. to my fellow Board Members, old and new, i would like to thank you for your 

commitment and invaluable contributions during the year. in closing, we also wish to acknowledge the efforts 

of the SitA executive team, Management and staff in creating a new and improved SitA.

 

Ms Zodwa Manase
Chairperson of the SitA Board
August 2010

CHAirperSon’S StAteMent – cont.
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CHieF exeCutiVe oFFiCer’S report 

During the year under review, the State information technology Agency (SitA) 

celebrated its tenth anniversary, thus reaching an important milestone in its 

history as an organisation. the centenary presented an opportunity to reflect 

on the role SitA has played in the information communication technology (iCt) 

sector and the legacy it intends to leave going forward. the year saw extensive 

work being done to consolidate the agency’s efforts, extend its footprint, set 

the platform to re-engineer the organisation and create new service offerings 

to ensure its relevance and support for government in meeting its service 

delivery objectives.

upon reflection, it was clear that while much has been accomplished, more 

needs to be achieved. Going forward, SitA will demonstrate new value within 

the public sector iCt environment. the organisational experience, expertise, 

maturity and lessons learnt over the decade will be used to grow SitA and 

expand its service delivery influence. We are harnessing our institutional energy 

to meet the strategic objectives set by our shareholder in support of government’s national agenda to modernise 

the public sector and to improve service delivery for all South Africans. 

FinAnCiAl perForMAnCe

the economic recession has impacted the organisation’s financial viability and sustainability negatively. 

Management’s objectives during the reporting period was to focus on interventions such as increasing revenue 

streams, leveraging assets, optimising working capital and strengthening the company’s cost structure. these 

measures had to be achieved in an uncertain economic environment with both the public and private sectors 

cutting expenditure on iCt in response to the global economic recession. For SitA, the financial refrain for 

the year was to ‘do more with less’. Spending was streamlined and an operating expenditure budget cut was 

implemented to reduce costs. 

the recession had a snowballing effect as our clients, including government departments, reduced their iCt spend. 

to ensure that revenue generation was not negatively affected, management of Service level Agreements (SlAs) 

with our clients was important to manage SitA’s cash flow and debt collection. it needs to be acknowledged 

that SitA’s continued financial sustainability will be a primary focus in the next financial year.

proViDinG iCt leADerSHip to MoDerniSe GoVernMent operAtionS 

Key programmes that SitA has worked on over the past decade include: the integrated Financial Management 

System (iFMS), the Government-wide enterprise Architecture (GWeA), telemedicine, the next Generation 

network (nGn), thusong Service Centres (tSCs), and learner tracking, to name but a few. SitA’s infrastructure 

was key to its ability to provide the required support to the independent electoral Commission (ieC) during the 

2009 national and provincial elections, as well as its involvement in the launch of the first presidential Hotline. 

Moreover, SitA also played a leading role with regard to open source, citizen-centred service delivery and cloud 

computing. essentially, SitA’s successes have been varied, spanning a vast number of public sector initiatives. 

Government-Wide enterprise Architecture

SitA developed the GWeA to close the gaps between the various iCt plans developed by government 

departments. it sets the minimum standard by which to use an enterprise Architecture approach (to ensure 

coherence and standardisation of iCt plans and blueprints across government departments), which is crucial in 

moving towards a government-wide iCt plan.

the GWeA framework encompasses an enterprise Architecture development methodology that outlines the 

defining principles, phases, tasks and activities by which to develop a departmental information and iCt plan. 

the framework also sets the minimum requirements and format of enterprise Architecture models, including the 

baseline and target architectures for the domains of business, data application and technology architectures.

in building on the foundation laid by the GWeA, SitA’s research and Development unit developed a 

proof-of-Concept (poC) on the value of Service oriented Architecture (SoA). this SoA represents a collection 

of services which communicate with each other, using either simple data passing or two or more services co-

ordinating some activity. using practical real world examples, the poC illustrates that data and services can be 

exposed to and utilised by various departments. the objective of this research was to prove that the SoA can 

produce the required results, provided that appropriate architecture planning is done.

Creating enabling platforms

the results of the poC will be used to position SitA as a service intermediary, which represents an all-in-one 

facility that processes government departments’, business and citizens’ requests sent via internet, SMS and other 

means. this service is able to facilitate, aggregate and integrate disparate activities, which an individual would 

otherwise have to go through in utilising a government service. it also serves as an interactive digital multi-

channel for the provision of information and access to government services. the Service intermediary project 

should be viewed as a potential model for intermediation, which will add value to departments, citizens and 

organisations, as well as lower costs, improve delivery capacity and efficiencies.

SitA developed another poC from the applied research on cloud computing by combining a group of services, 

such as fully automated installation, content management systems, e-learning systems, operating system 

platforms and enterprise content management systems, all of which will be provisioned via web interface. this 
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CHieF exeCutiVe oFFiCer’S report – cont.

development represented the first stage of cloud demonstration and will be followed by a pilot programme to 

be conducted in collaboration with SitA infrastructure Services. 

Cloud computing is a new way of providing iCt services via the web interface. the cloud paradigm will change 

the way in which information is stored and applications are run. rather than run programmes and data on an 

individual desktop computer, everything is hosted in the ‘cloud’, which is a nebulous assemblage of computers 

and servers accessed via the internet. 

Mobility is the Future

SitA has also positioned itself to be a first-tier Wireless Application Service provider (WASp). this enables the 

organisation to offer public sector services via a mobile platform or digital wireless technology. As a result, SitA 

is positively contributing to bridging the digital divide and ensuring widespread access and connectivity.

Following its certification to offer wireless services on behalf of government through its recently implemented 

WASp offerings, SitA launched the Mobizen. this is a citizen-centric mobile application platform designed to 

securely interact with government’s back-end systems to enable citizens to access information and services from 

anywhere at anytime. Government departments and state organs offering services to citizens are now able to 

integrate their systems with Mobizen to ensure that they reach a wider audience of mobile phone users. 

SitA has initiated a project to enable collaboration within and between government departments, known as 

Government-to-Government Collaboration (G2G), through appropriate Web 2.0 technologies. Collaboration 

applications and the ultimate creation of Government 2.0 are set to improve service delivery to citizens. enterprise 

collaboration tools can extend to include citizen-centric collaboration, where government and citizens will be 

able to connect on key issues, resulting in improved participation and transparency.

the e-Government Centre of excellence 

SitA’s vision for e-Government is to ensure that public services are designed from the average citizen’s point of 

view, and to improve accessibility and convenience in line with the national e-Government policy and Strategic 

Framework. to ensure that the targets for the growing urgency in e-Government services are met, SitA 

established an e-Government Centre of excellence (e-Coe). 

the role of the e-Coe is to provide strategic direction and co-ordination of e-Government programmes within 

SitA and to provide support to government departments. As a knowledge hub of the highest standards, the 

e-Coe provides a forum for various stakeholders to share, learn and collaborate across disciplines and institutions 

on e-Government projects.

During the 2009/10 financial year, a number of e-Government strategies were formulated to facilitate the 

design and deployment of citizen-centric mobile applications and e-Government solutions to securely interact 

with various government back-end systems that offer public sector services. 

the network operating Centre

SitA’s implementation of the next Generation network (nGn) holds several advantages, including improved 

response times and a higher quality network. it has enabled SitA to deliver customer services more promptly, 

whilst the ability to plan capacity and profile network traffic has ensured a more efficient allocation of bandwidth 

by SitA. More importantly, the nGn has also translated into lower operational and equipment costs. 

A new key function was the full implementation of the network operating Centre (noC), which operates on a 

24/7 basis. the noC pro-actively monitors wide area network (WAn) services to guard against the infiltration of 

malicious data and to manage any incidents, thus enabling improved service delivery. the noC also incorporates 

a network Security operations Centre, a central hub from where SitA administrators can supervise, monitor and 

maintain the nGn. SitA’s multifaceted reach is evident across government service delivery areas, public sector 

departments and operational systems.

enHAnCinG GoVernMent SerViCe DeliVerY initiAtiVeS 

the presidential Hotline

Following the ieC award of a three-year contract to SitA to provide call centre services to cover the 2009 

national and provincial elections and the 2011 municipal elections, SitA was also requested to work with the 

office of the presidency to set up the national presidential Hotline on behalf of the Honourable president of 

South Africa, Mr Jacob Zuma. 

in monitoring and evaluating the work done at the centre, the president and a parliamentary Chief Whip 

Forum assessed its operations at different stages of implementation. Both visits elicited positive sentiment and a 

recommendation that the service be extended to more citizens. Following the implementation of these national 

solutions by SitA, the process going forward is to maximise the value of these solutions to government by 

integrating national and provincial services. 

Department of Basic education

During the 2009/10 financial year, SitA also supported the Department of Basic education during a difficult 

period when examination papers were leaked in Mpumalanga. SitA printed new question papers on very short 
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notice and printed the results literally hours before they were due. the printing team was also on call for the 

duration of the writing, marking and processing of the Grade 12 examinations. 

in collaboration with the Department of education, SitA has continued the learners unit record information 

tracking System (luritS) to track the performance of learners throughout their school career. the system is 

able to solve the problem of duplicate learners in the system, track learners’ movement across schools, as well 

as identify those who drop out of school. this national tracking system has been designed to meet the needs of 

schools with different levels of iCt capability and caters for scenarios with paper-based school record-keeping 

systems, computerised school administration packages, and for those with no internet connectivity.

the Department of Defence 

the Department of Defence (DoD) is one of SitA’s biggest clients. During the year under review, SitA played 

a critical role in meeting the iCt requirements of the South African Air Force. SitA also engaged with Swedish 

aircraft manufacturer SAAB to design and develop the interface of the on-board systems of new military 

aircraft, including the Mission Support System and the Maintenance Ground Support System. the advantages 

of the interface are that it reduces the maintenance turnaround time of the aircraft and prevents user input 

errors from occurring when vast amounts of data are updated in the operational Support information System 

(oSiS) database. 

South African police Service

the SApS e-Docket solution electronically captures and stores SApS case investigation dockets. this solution is an 

innovative it solution to a long-standing problem of case dockets going missing, because of theft or corruption. 

Dockets are crucial to have justice served, as missing case dockets delay adjudication or in some instances result 

in the total withdrawal of cases.

using the e-Docket system, a docket is scanned and electronically stored in a central repository where it can be 

retrieved if the need arises. to date, 366,724 docket covers and 1,186,300 documents, which include statements, 

affidavits and reports have been stored using this e-Docket solution. the solution has been implemented in over 

210 police stations and priority stations are being targeted for further implementation.

e-learning

in support of improved learning and development, the SitA technology laboratory utilised research on existing 

learning Management Systems (lMS) to develop a new lMS. the latter can be integrated into a blended 

e-learning system, which can be used by all government departments. A poC was carried out, and the two 

e-learning platforms were installed in the host environment. Following pAlAMA’s interest in the e-learning 

platforms, SitA’s research and Development unit installed a pilot system to run pAlAMA courses from 

their premises. 

integrated Financial Management System (iFMS) 

the iFMS project is a multi-stakeholder programme involving national treasury, the DpSA and SitA, to consolidate 

and renew government’s back-office applications. the Asset register release 1.1 by national treasury, which 

forms part of the broader Supply Chain Management module of iFMS, was launched during the financial year. 

this included the following key functionalities of the Asset register:

Asset Administration:  �

Asset register including unique Asset number;  −

Asset Category, Supplier part reference; −  

ownership;and −  

physical Asset Movement. −

Financial Asset register:  �

Financial Asset number; −

Acquisition information; −  

Capitalisation; −

Depreciation; and −  

Deactivation. −

Asset Condition Assessment:  �

Assessment Scheduling; −

Assessment Feedback and Valuation; −

Asset operations and Maintenance expense Capturing; and −

Management Disposal Sheet �

the scope of the project covers Financial Management, Human resources Management, Supply Chain 

Management, Asset Management and Business intelligence across both national and provincial departments. 

it constitutes the largest integrated business solution undertaking in the country and SitA acts as a primary 

systems integrator for iFMS. this includes the responsibility of managing contracting and running the 

transversal systems.

proCureMent SerViCeS

SitA commenced with the overhaul of its procurement function to strengthen its efficiency and governance, as 

it moves to a model of supply chain management. the overhaul of its procurement processes entails migration 

from a paper-based system to a fully automated procurement environment. 

CHieF exeCutiVe oFFiCer’S report – cont.
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SitA has started with a process of engagement with Small, Medium and Micro enterprises (SMMes) to understand 

their capabilities nationally and in the regions, as well as identifying barriers and constraints that prevent broader 

SMMe participation in government it business. this will culminate in a SitA procurement plan aimed at better 

supporting these enterprises. 

SitA At A GlAnCe 
 

Whilst the 2009/10 financial year marked the organisation’s 10th year of service delivery support through iCts 

to public sector institutions, it also ushered in a new era for the organisation. the year was characterised by 

an acute awareness of expenditure patterns within the context of ongoing global economic constraints; hence 

the operational mantra to ‘do more with less’. 

While SitA stepped up its pace to modernise the face of the South African public service and to register progress 

in strategic projects, internally, efforts to re-engineer and consolidate the internal control/administration systems 

also became a priority. SitA has upgraded its oracle erp system to improve its operational efficiency and to 

integrate its business systems and processes to enhance the quality of reporting, monitoring and control within 

the organisation. Further embedding of the system and training of users will continue to ensure full utilisation, 

whilst SitA will continue to address the system challenges.

the periodic assessments/audits conducted by SABS on SitA processes yielded positive results. no significant 

gaps were identified, indicating that the organisation, which is an iSo 9001:2008 certified institution, is maturing 

and has managed its operations in accordance with standard operating procedures. 

Committed to a performance-based ethic, SitA strengthened the alignment of its corporate objectives with 

divisional, departmental and individual goals to ensure greater performance and synergy across all units 

and departments.

Given the diverse and dynamic technology environment that SitA operates in, we used the Service portfolio 

Definition (SpD) project to produce a service catalogue that describes the organisation’s range of offerings in 

greater depth. SitA’s capability to deliver on these offerings is being assessed in relation to its operating and 

business models. 

During the year, the organisation endorsed the SitA environmental Management policy/pledge as part of its 

commitment to reduce its impact on the environment. to this end, environmental management initiatives 

were introduced to ensure that SitA’s carbon footprint is minimised. the organisation intensified its recycling 

efforts, especially with regard to e-waste, and our technologies are under review for environmental friendliness 

and efficiency. 

CorporAte SoCiAl reSponSiBilitY 

SitA’s Corporate Social responsibility (CSr) Strategy focuses on empowering people with knowledge through 

iCts, thereby contributing towards bridging the digital divide in South Africa. SitA is also committed to 

sustainable development whilst respecting creation, nature, people and the environment. 

During the year under review, SitA donated infrastructure which included computers, projectors, cabling, 

servers and routers to six secondary schools in KwaZulu-natal, Midlands area and Mpophomeni. Schoolnet SA 

was appointed as the iCt integrator to ensure that all teachers and students are trained in the use of iCt, for 

the optimal integration of iCt into teaching and learning. 100 teachers and 60 learners were trained. SitA also 

launched an iCt laboratory at the nolitha Special School in the eastern Cape. 

through the iKuSASA lAMi Job Shadowing initiative, SitA hosted Grade 11 and 12 learners to introduce them 

to iCt and its role in public sector development. this platform for learners, to gain better knowledge of iCt, was 

created in partnership with the Gauteng Department of education (GDe). the GDe identified top performing 

rural and township schools to participate in this initiative. 

For the Mandela Day programme, in which the individual ability to make a difference is recognised, SitA 

spent time at the pretoria-based Father Simagaliso orphanage and also distributed blankets, jerseys and baby 

products. to honour Women’s Day, SitA volunteers interacted with the elderly, and provided food and gift 

packs to approximately 70 senior citizens at the Holy Cross old Age Home. Given the impact of HiV/AiDS, a 

company-wide campaign to work with AiDS orphanages to support children infected and affected by HiV/AiDS 

was initiated. Going forward, a comprehensive SitA CSr Strategy will be developed to smartly use iCts as a 

vehicle that will support disadvantaged communities.

ConCluSion

it has not been an easy year for SitA, but its role as the iCt agency for government is undisputed. As government 

confronts service delivery challenges, SitA is determined to be at its side to facilitate and implement innovative 

solutions to ensure government modernisation and effective and efficient service delivery.

CHieF exeCutiVe oFFiCer’S report – cont.
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Ms r e Magoma-nthite
(Ceo team)

Mr e Khan
(Ceo team)

Mr M M Mtimunye
(Ceo team)

Mr B e ramfoloMr A pretorius

Mr A r Alli Mr l M A pama

CHieF exeCutiVe oFFiCer’S report – cont.

in meeting government’s objectives and our vision, we thank the Minister of public Service and Administration, 

Mr richard Baloyi, for his guidance and ongoing support. We thank the SitA Chairperson of the Board,  

Ms Z p Manase and the SitA Board, whose oversight role ensured that we remain on course in terms of our 

strategic direction and our mission to improve governance.

And finally, i thank all SitAzens for their contribution to the organisation achieving its goals in support of 

government and its national developmental agenda.

 

Ms Nontobeko Ntsinde
Acting Chief executive officer
August 2010

exeCutiVe CoMMittee For tHe YeAr enDeD 31 MArCH 2010
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exeCutiVe CoMMittee – cont.

nAMe posItIon teRM QuAlIfICAtIon

Ms r e Magoma-nthite Chief Shared Services
Acting Chief executive 
officer

1 Jan 2008  
1 oct 2009 – 30 Jun 2010

Diploma in educational  -
technology (Mechanical 
engineering)
MA (education  -
technology)
phD (in progress) -

Mr e Khan Chief information officer 1 Jan 2008 BCom (informatics) -
MCp -
unisa programme in  -
electronic Commerce

Mr M M Mtimunye Chief Strategic Services
Acting Chief executive 
officer 

1 nov 2007
22 May 2009 – 30 Sept 2009

pG Dip project  -
Management
MCom project  -
Management 
(Cum laude)
MBA -

Mr l M A pama Acting Chief Business 
operations

1 Sept 2009 Customer relationship  -
Management programme  
(Gordon institute of 
Business Science)
World Class Services  -
programme  
(Gordon institute of 
Business Science)
BSc (Hons) (Applied  -
economics)

Ms F A pienaar Chief Business
operations
Acting Chief
executive officer

1 Jan 2008 

1 Aug 2008 – 21 May 2009 
resigned: 31 Aug 2009

BA (Hons) (Human  -
resources)
BSc -
HeD -

Mr A p pedlar Chief regulatory
Affairs and
procurement

1 nov 2007  

Contract expired: 
31 oct 2009

Diploma in law & tax -
BA (Hons) -
BSc -

Mr A pretorius Acting Chief Financial 
officer

1 Jan 2008 Member of the institute of  -
Directors
llB (in progress)  -
Chartered Accountant 
(SA)

Mr B e ramfolo Acting Chief regulatory
Affairs and
procurement

1 oct 2009 BSc (industrial  -
engineering)
MSc (industrial  -
engineering)
MBA -

SECTION 2 – HuMAn CApitAl MAnAGeMent
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HuMAn CApitAl MAnAGeMent

Human Capital Management (HCM) is widely recognised as a key driver for a successful organisation. HCM’s 

function is to ensure that the company attracts the most suitably skilled candidates and, where required, 

develops, enhances and retains the existing skills base. 

the economic recession experienced during the 2009/10 financial year posed a number of challenges. For 

instance, there was a marked increase in the number of employees who required financial assistance to deal 

with the economic downturn. of particular significance in dealing with these challenges was the organisation’s 

stance to ‘do more with less’.

tAlent MAnAGeMent

During the 2009/10 financial year, talent Management focused much of its effort on skills development. 36% 

of SitA’s training budget was dedicated to the enhancement of core skills required to meet the company’s 

objectives. the skills development drive was not only inwardly focused, but also included the development of 

skills among the youth, who comprise the largest contingent of unemployed persons in the country and are 

potential future employees. 

to improve SitA’s leadership capabilities, 22% of the training budget was spent on leadership development. 

this included a leadership Development programme, a new Managers programme and other relevant short 

courses to equip employees with management skills. 

the 2009/10 financial year also saw the implementation of version 12 of the oracle enterprise resource planning 

System (erp). this necessitated the training of all employees on the new system. General functions such as 

performance management and i-expenses were migrated. 

orGAniSAtionAl DeVelopMent

As the custodian of the SitA culture, organisational Development continues to implement programmes to 

improve SitA’s image and to become one of the best companies to work for. SitA continuously pursues the 

adoption of internationally accepted best practices, as well as the creation of a conducive working environment 

by promoting values which reinforce SitA’s commitment to a high-performance culture. to measure SitA’s 

achievements in this regard, bi-annual culture and internal customer surveys are conducted. the culture results 

for the 2009/10 financial year are reflected on page 33.

over and above the transformational change initiative, SitA has implemented the organisational Design which 

includes maintenance of structures, job profiling, job evaluation and work/study management. Much effort has 

gone into the mapping of business processes, which forms an integral part of the erp implementation.

Hr SerViCeS

employment equity Status

SitA has performed well in this area of transformation by meeting its employment equity (ee) targets over 

the past few years. Although all targets have been achieved, the female target remains a difficult one. the 

challenge resides in the more senior positions, from patterson level C3–D4 (representing specialists, middle 

management, etc). this has been exacerbated by the limited number of highly skilled female candidates 

available in the iCt sector, which makes them highly sought after. these candidates are generally more mobile 

and command higher salaries, making them more difficult to attract and retain. the table on pages 34 to 35 

indicates SitA’s ee status as at the end of the financial year. the total number of permanent employees was two 

thousand six hundred and twenty-three (2 623).

Culture SurVeY
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Actual target

1.49%

race Gender Category Disability

pe
rc

en
ta

ge

70.00%

60.00%

50.00%

40.00%

30.00%

20.00%

10.00%

0.00%

64.93% 62%

46.13% 46%

1.1%

HuMAn CApitAl MAnAGeMent – cont.

JOB  
LEvEL

AfRICAN COLOuRED INDIAN WhITE TOTAL EMPLOYEES TOTAL EE EE % GENDER % DISABLED

F M t F M t F M t F M t F M t F M t totAl tArGet FeMAle tArGet no % tArGet %

A1A3 26 33 59 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 26 33 59 26 33 59 100.00% 62.00% 44.07% 46.00% 0 0.00% 1.10%

B1B2 34 22 56 2 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 1 37 22 59 36 22 58 98.31% 62.00% 62.71% 46.00% 0 0.00% 1.10%

B3B5 184 143 327 33 17 50 8 9 17 59 20 79 284 189 473 225 169 394 83.30% 62.00% 60.04% 46.00% 18 3.81% 1.10%

C1C2 159 173 332 13 26 39 5 11 16 58 51 109 235 261 496 177 210 387 78.02% 62.00% 47.38% 46.00% 8 1.61% 1.10%

C3C5 153 185 338 22 28 50 11 42 53 150 191 341 336 446 782 186 255 441 56.39% 62.00% 42.97% 46.00% 12 1.53% 1.10%

D1D3 85 108 193 6 23 29 13 19 32 137 185 322 241 335 576 104 150 254 44.10% 62.00% 41.84% 46.00% 1 0.17% 1.10%

D4D5 22 35 57 2 5 7 3 14 17 15 43 58 42 97 139 27 54 81 58.27% 62.00% 30.22% 46.00% 0 0.00% 1.10%

e1e3 6 13 19 1 1 2 0 5 5 1 9 10 8 28 36 7 19 26 72.22% 62.00% 22.22% 46.00% 0 0.00% 1.10%

F1F2 1 1 2 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 2 3 1 2 3 100.00% 62.00% 33.33% 46.00% 0 0.00% 1.10%

F3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00% 62.00% 0.00% 46.00% 0 0.00% 1.10%

Total 670 713 1383 79 100 179 40 101 141 421 499 920 1210 1413 2623 789 914 1703 64.93% 62.00% 46.13% 46.00% 39 1.49% 1.10%

eMploYMent eQuitY StAtuS

ee tArGet perForMAnCe employee Wellbeing

SitA’s HiV/AiDS Strategy is aligned to the HiV national Strategic plan (2007 – 2011). During the reporting 

period, SitA focused on running voluntary confidential counselling and testing sessions and tuberculosis (tB) 

management initiatives to strengthen SitA’s corporate health profile. in addition, a series of managerial and  

HiV/Sti sessions were conducted in all SitA provincial offices. initially, 40 peer educators were trained by the John 

Hopkins university of Maryland. they in turn trained other staff, bringing the total number of peer educators 

to 130. All SitA employees and their dependants have access to a 24-hour a day counselling and psychological 

support service, provided in association with the iCAS institution of Southern Africa. 

in terms of the Disability Management programme, “A Day in the life of a Disabled person” campaign was 

conducted. this included a programme in which employees acted out different disabilities to experience the 

challenges these individuals face on a daily basis. Benchmarking was also done in collaboration with three 

different private sector institutions, with the view to apply best practice and improve the corporate lives of 

employees with disabilities.
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personnel Security Vetting

personnel security is crucial to SitA’s line of business. in order to ensure that the classified information of our 

company and our client base is not compromised, all employees are required to undergo a security clearance 

process underwritten by the national intelligence agencies.

the company has strengthened its strategic partnerships with the intelligence agencies to ensure 

compliance with the vetting legislative framework, as well as to attract and retain employees who meet all 

security requirements.

over 44% of all employees and contractors are currently in possession of a valid security clearance. A further 

41% of clearances have been finalised and are currently with the agencies for evaluation. 85% of all employees 

and contractors have therefore been vetted. the remaining 15% are new employees, new contractors and 

expired clearances. From a vetting perspective, this is the best position that the company has found itself in.

SECTION 3 – CorporAte GoVernAnCe
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CorporAte GoVernAnCe

introDuCtion

the Board of Directors of SitA regards corporate governance as fundamental to the success of the business and 

the Board is fully committed to ensuring that good governance is practised in order for the company to remain 

a viable and sustainable business. this commitment is embraced at all levels of the company.

SitA ensures that its processes and practices are reviewed on an ongoing basis to guarantee compliance with 

applicable legislation, the use of funds in an economic, efficient and effective manner, and adherence to good 

corporate governance practices. processes and practices are underpinned by the principles of transparency, 

integrity and accountability, as well as an inclusive approach that recognises the importance of all stakeholders 

in ensuring the viability and sustainability of the company, whilst meeting its strategic objectives.

Compliance, not only with the letter, but also the spirit of relevant governance codes remains a priority for the 

organisation. As a state–owned enterprise, SitA is guided by the principles of the Code of Corporate practices 

and Conduct contained in the “King ii report on Corporate Governance”, as well as the ‘protocol on Corporate 

Governance in the public Sector 2002’. the statutory duties, responsibilities and provisions imposed on the 

Directors of SitA by the Companies Act no. 61 of 1973, as amended, are augmented by those contained in the 

public Finance Management Act no. 1 of 1999, as amended. 

SHAreHolDinG

the South African government, as represented by the Minister for public Service and Administration, is the sole 

shareholder of SitA.

SHAreHolDer CoMpACt

in terms of the treasury regulations issued in accordance with the pFMA, SitA must, in consultation with 

its executive Authority (the Minister for public Service and Administration) annually conclude a Shareholder 

Compact which documents the mandated key performance measures and indicators to be attained by SitA, as 

agreed between the Board of Directors and the executive Authority. 

in terms of the compact, the relationship between the Shareholder and the Board is preserved, as the Board is 

responsible for ensuring that proper internal controls are in place and that SitA is effectively managed.

GoVerninG BoDieS

Board of Directors

Composition of the Board

Details of the Directors appear on pages 18 to 19.

the SitA Act no. 88 of 1998, as amended, provides that SitA will be governed and controlled by a Board of 

Directors appointed by the Minister after consultation with Cabinet.

SitA has a unitary Board structure currently comprising of eleven (11) non–executive Directors and 

five (5) Alternate non–executive Members appointed by the Minister of public Service and Administration.  

non–executive Directors are appointed for a period of three years, and retire by rotation, but are eligible 

for reappointment. 

Board meetings are scheduled annually in advance, and additional meetings are convened as and when material 

issues arise which require decisions by the Board. 

the Board has the following Sub-Committees:

Audit and risk Committee �

Finance and Capex Committee �

Human resource and remuneration Committee �

Strategic Committee �

executive Management Committee (exCo) �
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CorporAte GoVernAnCe – cont.

AttenDAnCe At MeetinGS DurinG tHe perioD unDer reVieW
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nuMBeR of MeetIngs Held 14 6 3 1 4

Ms Z p Manase (Chairperson) 14 5 3 – 3

Ms F C potgieter–Gqubulé1 (Deputy Chairperson) – – – – –

Ms S V Bvuma1 – – – – –

Ms C B Clark 9 3 1 1 2

Mr p r Kgame1 – – – – –

Mr C C W Kruger 13 6 3 – 3

Mr A M luthuli 6 2 2 – 2

Ms M Makhekhe-Mokhuane 12 5 3 – 4

Ms K Mdlulwa1 – – – – –

prof M i Mphahlele1 – – – – –

Ms r Sekese 7 3 – – 2

Ms M o Williams2 9 3 2 – 1

Alternates

Mr W S Mabena1 – – – – –

Ms B M Malongete1 – – – – –

Ms n M Mhlakaza1 – – – – –

Ms t Moloko1 – – – – –

Mr D C niddrie1 – – – – –

1  Appointed with effect from 17 March 2010.
2 resigned from the Board on 30 September 2009.

role and Function of the Board

in terms of the provisions of the pFMA, the SitA Board is the Accounting Authority. the Board Charter defines 

the roles, duties and responsibilities of the Board, as well as salient corporate governance principles. 

the role of the Board entails the following:

providing strategic direction and leadership; �

Determining the goals and objectives of the company; �

Approving key policies including investment and risk management; �

reviewing the company’s annual goals and strategies for achieving its objectives; �

Approving and monitoring compliance with corporate plans, financial plans and budgets; �

reviewing and approving the company’s financial objectives, plans and expenditure; �

Considering and approving the annual financial statements and notices to the Shareholder; �

ensuring good corporate governance and ethics; �

Monitoring and reviewing the company’s performance and effectiveness of internal controls; �

ensuring effective communication with relevant stakeholders; �

liaising with and reporting to the Shareholder; and �

Approving transactions beyond the authority of Senior Management. �

Delegation of Authority

the Board retains full and effective control over the operations of the organisation. this responsibility is facilitated 

by a well-developed governance structure comprising various Board Committees and a Delegation of Authority 

Framework. this framework assists in the control of the company decision-making process and does not dilute 

the duties and responsibilities of the Directors.

Director induction and orientation

All new Directors are subjected to an induction programme that is designed to enhance understanding of SitA’s 

legislative framework, its governance processes and the nature and operations of its business. training is also 

provided on request to meet the needs of Directors. Directors are also informed of new laws and regulations.

Directors’ remuneration

independent non executive Directors receive fees for their contribution to the Board and the committees on 

which they serve. the Shareholder determines fees after consultation with national treasury. non executive 

Directors are also reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred on the company’s behalf.

Further information on Directors’ remuneration appears on pages 132 to 137.
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Company Secretariat Function

Directors have unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, as well as the 

Secretariat Department. the Company Secretary, together with other assurance functions, monitors SitA’s 

compliance in terms of the provisions of the pFMA, the Companies Act and other relevant legislation.

Board Sub-Committees

Board Sub-Committees exist to assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities. this assistance is rendered in 

the form of recommendations and reports submitted to Board meetings whereby transparency and full disclosure 

of Sub-Committee activities are ensured. each committee operates within the ambit of its defined terms of 

reference that set out the composition, role, responsibilities, delegated authority and meeting requirements.

Audit and risk Committee

the membership of this committee comprises of at least four members, all of whom are non-executive Directors.

the committee monitors compliance with relevant legislation and ensures that appropriate systems of internal 

control are maintained to protect SitA’s interests and assets. it reviews the activities of the internal Audit 

Department and its effectiveness. it is also responsible for the evaluation of the independence, objectivity and 

effectiveness of the external auditors and the review of accounting and auditing concerns identified by internal 

and external audits. the committee reviews the accuracy, reliability and credibility of financial reporting, and 

recommends the Annual Financial Statements and the Annual report to the Board for approval. 

Six committee meetings were held during the financial year. these were attended by the external auditors, 

internal auditors, the Acting Chief executive officer, the Acting Chief Financial officer and other invited officials. 

the Chief Audit executive and the external auditors have unrestricted access to the Chairperson of the Audit and 

risk Committee and to the Chairperson of the Board.

Finance and Capex Committee

the membership of this committee comprises of non-executive Directors, one of whom is the Chairperson. 

Members of the SitA executive Committee attend the meeting by invitation.

the committee reviews the business plans and company budget and monitors compliance thereto. it evaluates 

and approves business cases for new projects, and monitors and oversees the management of capital expenditure. 

the committee considers other matters as determined by the Board and reviews costing and pricing models and 

applicable accounting procedures and systems.

Human resources and remuneration Committee

the membership of this committee comprises of at least four non-executive Directors, one of whom is 

the Chairperson.

the committee submits recommendations to the Board on the appointment of executive and non-executive 

Directors, and is responsible for the oversight and monitoring of Human Capital Management (HCM) strategies 

and implementation within the company. it also determines, agrees on and develops the company’s general 

policy on executive and Senior Management remuneration and recommends to the Board specific remuneration 

packages for executive Management.

Strategic Committee

the Strategic Committee comprises of at least six non-executive Directors and one executive Director and 

is chaired by the Chairperson of the Board. All Board Members may attend the meetings by invitation. All 

executives and corporate officials attend the meetings by invitation.

the committee is responsible for overseeing the strategic direction of SitA and the implementation thereof. 

its role is to define the SitA strategy in line with SitA’s mandate, develop and manage the strategy capability 

requirements, and guide and lead the implementation of that strategy.

executive Management Committee (exCo)

exCo comprises of the executive Management and is chaired by the Chief executive officer. it consists of 

the executives of SitA’s various departments. relevant corporate officials also attend by invitation, as 

determined by the Chief executive officer. Details of the exCo members appear on page 30. the committee 

assists the Chief executive in guiding and controlling the overall direction of the business and in exercising 

executive oversight. it is responsible for ensuring the effective management of the day-to-day operations 

of the business. twenty-eight (28) committee meetings were held during the 2009/2010 financial year.  

the attendance by members of the committee is reflected on page 44.

CorporAte GoVernAnCe – cont.
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executive Committee (exCo)

MeMBeRs AttendAnCe

nuMBeR of MeetIngs Held 28

Ms r e Magoma nthite1 23

Mr e Khan 20

Mr M M Mtimunye2 23

Mr l M A pama3 14

Mr A p pedlar4 16

Ms F A pienaar5 7

Mr A pretorius 24

Mr B e ramfolo6 10

1 Acting Chief executive officer from 1 october 2009 and Chairperson of the executive Committee.

2 Acting Chief executive officer from 22 May 2009 to 30 September 2009 and Chairperson of the   

 executive Committee.

3 Acting Chief Business operations from 1 July 2009.

4 Contract expired on 31 october 2009.

5 Acting Chief executive officer from 1 August 2008 to 21 May 2009 and Chairperson of the executive   

 Committee. resigned from SitA on 31 August 2009.

6 Acting Chief regulatory Affairs and procurement from 1 october 2009.

public Finance Management Act (pFMA)

the pFMA regulates financial management inclusive of all revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities in state- 

owned entities in order to ensure that they are managed efficiently and effectively and to provide for the 

responsibilities of persons entrusted with financial management. the pFMA focuses on financial management 

and related outputs and responsibilities. the Board of Directors, as the Accounting Authority, complies with the 

fiduciary duties as set out in the pFMA. 

in terms of the provisions of the pFMA, the Board has the ultimate responsibility for establishing, implementing 

and maintaining a framework of internal control. SitA has implemented and maintains an integrated, enterprise-

wide risk management process and applies a logical and systematic methodology to identify, analyse, assess, 

and monitor and mitigate all identified risks. the effectiveness of the internal control process is measured by 

how well it aligns the key fundamentals of governance, business strategic objectives, code of ethics, standards 

and policies, strategies and compliance. SitA recognises the varying operational complexities of its activities and 

integrates all efforts to reduce the incidence of risk exposures in accordance with its approved risk profile.

in terms of the treasury regulations (tr 28.3.1), SitA’s Accounting Authority must, for the purposes of “material” 

and “significance”, in terms of sections 54 (2) and 55 (2) of the pFMA, develop and agree on a framework 

or acceptable levels of materiality and significance with the relevant executive Authority. the Materiality and 

Significance Framework for the financial year under review, which is determined and reviewed annually by 

Management and approved by the Board, is as follows:

seCtIon ReQuIReMent MAteRIAl/sIgnIfICAnt

Section 50(1) the accounting authority for a 
public entity must – 
(c) on request, disclose to the 
executive authority responsible 
for that public entity or the 
legislature to which the public 
entity is accountable, all 
material facts, including those 
reasonably discoverable, which 
in any way may influence the 
decisions or actions of the 
executive authority.

SitA submits quarterly reports to the executive authority 
which include all relevant information which may 
influence the decisions or actions of the executive 
authority. these reports cover all transactions/ventures 
not included in the SitA strategic plan and SitA mandate 
and all other information as requested/required by 
the Minister.

Section 51(1)
(g)

An accounting authority for 
a public entity must promptly 
inform the national treasury 
on any new entity which that 
public entity intends to estab-
lish or in the establishment of 
which it takes the initiative.

SitA will inform the national treasury of individual transactions 
covered by this section irrespective of the materiality or 
significance of the transaction. the application will be done 
simultaneously with the section 54 application to the DpSA.

Section 54(2) Before a public entity con-
cludes any of the following 
transactions, the accounting 
authority for the public entity 
must promptly and in writing 
inform the relevant treasury 
of the transaction and sub-
mit relevant particulars of the 
transaction to its executive 
authority for approval of the 
transaction.

Quantitative factors1. 

1.1  Sections 54(2)(a)-(e): Any transaction will be 
regarded as significant if its rand value exceeds 
r40 million. this materiality figure is based on a 
percentage of 1.5% (the recommended range is 
1% – 2%) applied to the total assets value of 
r2.6 billion. the asset value was used since the 
transactions to which the materiality limit relates 
are asset based.

1.2  Section 54(2)(f): Any change in interest will be 
regarded as significant if the rand value exceeds 
r25 million. this figure is based on a percentage 
of 0.7% (the recommended range is 0.5%  – 
1%) applied to the total revenue of r3.6 billion. 
revenue was used as a basis to determine the 
materiality limit, as it is more appropriate to the 
nature of transactions than assets.

CorporAte GoVernAnCe – cont.
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CorporAte GoVernAnCe – cont.

seCtIon ReQuIReMent MAteRIAl/sIgnIfICAnt

establishment or participa-(a)  
tion in the establishment 
of a company.

2. Qualitative factors: 
the following qualitative factors will be taken 
into account when determining the significance 
of transactions:

Any transaction of this nature that causes any 2.1  
interest (equity or loans) to be taken by SitA in 
the company to be established, requires approval 
from the executive authority irrespective of its 
materiality or significance.

Concerning participation in the establishment 2.2  
of a company, where an interest (equity or 
loans) is to be taken by SitA in the company 
to be established, any involvement by SitA in 
the establishment process will necessitate an 
application for approval, regardless of the degree 
of involvement by SitA.

Flowing from 1 and 2 above, where no interest (equity 2.3  
or loans) is to be held by SitA in the company to be 
established, for instance, where SitA is only facilitating 
the formation on behalf of or with other parties in 
pursuance of a social objective, such participation need 
not necessitate an application for approval.

the establishment (or participation in the establishment) 2.4  
by SitA of any company that is domiciled outside the 
republic of South Africa requires approval from the 
executive authority irrespective of the materiality or 
significance of the transaction.

For purposes of establishment of an entity as envisaged 2.5  
under section 51(1)(g), the above principles will also 
apply.

participation in a signifi-(b)  
cant partnership, trust, un-
incorporated joint venture 
or similar arrangement.

Any transaction that entails incorporation under the 2.6  
Companies Act (or similar foreign legislation) should be 
dealt with under 2.1 to 2.5 above.

For transactions not entailing incorporation, any 2.7  
transaction will be considered as significant.

if participation is in any partnership, trust, unin-2.7.1  
corporated joint venture or similar arrangement 
that is located outside the republic.

Acquisition or disposal of a (c)  
significant asset.

transactions are to be regarded as signifi-2.8  
cant where –

ownership control is affected; or2.8.1  

SitA’s right to pass or block a special resolution 2.8.1  
is affected; or

there is a change in shareholding of at least 2.8.1  
20%; or

For2.8.1   an acquisition, any transaction results in a 
shareholding of at least 20% in a company.

seCtIon ReQuIReMent MAteRIAl/sIgnIfICAnt

Acquisition or disposal of a (d)  
significant shareholding in 
a company.

Although the acquisition or disposal of shares or 2.9  
of an interest in an unincorporated vehicle, as 
envisaged by sections 54(2)(b), (c) and (f), would 
also be an acquisition or disposal of an asset, 
such transactions are more appropriately dealt 
with under the guidelines for those sections.

Assets classified as current assets according 2.10  
to GAAp are not regarded as falling under 
this subsection.

regarding the acquisition of assets through 2.11  
a finance.

Commencement or cessa-(e)  
tion of a significant busi-
ness activity. 

A business activity that falls within SitA’s 2.12  
core business is not regarded as falling under 
this subsection.

A significant change in (f)  
the nature or extent of 
its interest in a significant 
partnership, trust, unin-
corporated joint venture 
or similar arrangement.

the significance of a change in interest should 2.13  
only be considered if the participation in the 
partnership, trust, unincorporated joint venture 
or similar arrangement was originally regarded as 
significant as per 2.12 above.

Where the nature changes between any of 2.14  
the vehicles (that is between a partnership, 
trust, unincorporated joint venture or 
similar arrangement), this will be regarded 
as significant.

Any transaction that results in a cumulative 2.15  
interest of at least 20% in the vehicle (partnership, 
trust, unincorporated joint venture or similar 
arrangement) is regarded as significant.

Any subsequent transaction that results in an 2.16  
increase of the cumulative interest by at least 10% 
in the vehicle (partnership, trust, unincorporated 
joint venture or similar arrangement) is regarded 
as significant.

Section 55(2) A significant change in (g)  
the nature or extent of 
its interest in a significant 
partnership, trust, unin-
corporated joint venture 
or similar arrangement. 
 

the annual report and fi-
nancial statements referred 
to in subsection 55(1)(d) 
must – (b) include par-
ticulars of – (i) any mate-
rial losses through criminal 
conduct and any irregular 
expenditure and fruitless 
and wasteful expenditure 
that occurred during the 
financial year.

losses in excess of r50,000 arising from criminal 2.17  
conduct are considered to be material and will 
be reported in accordance with the provisions of 
section 55(2) of the pFMA.

Any individual transaction arising from irregular 2.18  
expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
will be considered to be material and will be dealt 
with in accordance with the provisions of section 
55(2) of the pFMA irrespective of the rand 
amount involved.
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internAl Control

internAl AuDit

the SitA internal Audit Division was established in terms of section 51(1)(a)(ii) of the pFMA, which requires the 

Accounting Authority (the Board) to ensure that SitA has and maintains a system of internal audit. the Audit 

and risk Committee has the authority to independently determine the scope and extent of work performed by 

the internal Audit function. the purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal Audit function are formally 

defined in its Charter, which is reviewed on an annual basis and approved by the Audit and risk Committee and 

the SitA Board. in accordance with the overriding requirement of independence and objectivity, the Chief Audit 

executive reports functionally to the Chairperson of the Audit and risk Committee and administratively to the 

Chief executive officer.

the scope of internal Audit in providing assurance services is to evaluate and assist Management in improving 

the overall effectiveness of risk management, control and governance within SitA, assessing the risks involved 

and evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of processes, systems and controls to mitigate the identified and 

reported risks. 

internal Audit conducts audits in accordance with the standards set by the international professional practices 

Framework (ippF), as promulgated by the institute of internal Auditors (iiA), and the standards set by the 

information Systems and Control Association (iSACA). All internal auditors are obliged at all times to apply and 

uphold the principles of integrity, objectivity, independence, confidentiality and competency under the iiA’s 

formal Code of ethics.

internal Audit is committed to developing its operational efficiencies through the ongoing training of its staff, 

adherence to its Quality Assurance and improvement programme, and close monitoring of developments on 

governance and applicable legislation. 

the Audit plan for the 2009/10 year was based on the key high risks derived from SitA’s internal risk management 

processes that were approved by the Audit and risk Committee at the beginning of the financial year. the 

Audit plan is flexible and responsive to changes in SitA’s risk profile and is updated regularly to reflect changes 

in the risk profile of the business. the Chief Audit executive attends all Audit and risk Committee meetings 

and reports on all material or significant control weaknesses, agreed Management remedial actions to address 

the reported findings, performance to date against the objectives outlined in the Audit plan, as well as any 

other operational activities that may warrant the attention of the Audit and risk Committee. the quarterly 

internal Audit report assists the Audit and risk Committee in discharging its responsibilities in terms of the 

national treasury regulations. An independent Quality review Assessment of the internal Audit function was 

conducted in the 2006/07 financial year, and internal Audit was awarded a ‘Generally Conforms’ opinion. this 

confirms that the internal Audit function’s activities are being conducted and performed in compliance with 

the internal Audit standards and methodology. in line with these standards and the recommendations of the 

‘King iii report’, internal Audit will be undergoing its next independent Quality review Assessment during the 

2011/2012 financial year.  internal Audit follows a risk-based audit approach. 

ForenSiC inVeStiGAtionS

to support the strategic intent of the organisation, the internal Audit Department also conducts forensic 

investigations and responds to Management requests. the implemented integrated Anti-Fraud and prevention 

Strategy is reviewed annually to reduce the incidence of risk, irregularities and fraud. internal Audit also attends 

to the matters received through an independent ethics line. this is a vehicle for the public to report any alleged 

fraud, corruption, improper conduct and other contraventions of SitA’s Code of ethics. 

reSponSiBilitY For reportinG

in order to present a balanced and understandable assessment of its position, SitA continuously strives to ensure 

that reporting and disclosure to stakeholders are comprehensive, relevant, transparent, clear and effective. it 

places great emphasis on addressing both positive and negative aspects in order to demonstrate the long-term 

viability and sustainability of the organisation.

riSK MAnAGeMent

in terms of section 51(1) of the pFMA, the Board must maintain an effective, efficient and transparent system 

of, among other, risk management. Furthermore, King iii states that risk management should be practised 

throughout the organisation by all staff in their day-to-day activities. SitA has implemented a risk management 

methodology that is based on best business practice, and in line with the risk Management Framework issued 

by national treasury.

risk Management identifies and assesses key risks, designs, implements and continually reviews 

strategies and processes by which those risks can be managed and mitigated to a level acceptable to the 

relevant stakeholders.

the strategic risk profile, which comprises all risks that could have an impact on the achievement of SitA’s 

strategic objectives, has been compiled and the risk mitigation strategies were evaluated and monitored at both 

Board and executive level. Where applicable, strategic risks are cascaded to an operational level for business 

units to manage and mitigate identified risks.
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CoMMuniCAtion WitH StAKeHolDerS

SitA recognises the rightful interest of stakeholders in its affairs, including government as shareholder, government 

departments, employees, consumers, suppliers, the media, policy and regulatory bodies. Communication and 

interactive initiatives with stakeholders are ongoing and are addressed through appropriate channels, depending 

on the needs of the various stakeholders. risk Management identifies and assesses key risks, designs, implements 

and continually reviews strategies and processes by which those risks can be managed and mitigated to a level 

acceptable to the relevant stakeholders.

internAl Control – cont. SECTION 4 – perForMAnCe AGAinSt StrAteGiC oBJeCtiVeS
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perForMAnCe AGAinSt StrAteGiC oBJeCtiVeS

oBJeCtIVe key peRfoRMAnCe
IndICAtoR

tARget
peRfoRMAnCe Result VARIAnCe explAIned

fINANCIAL

improve 
long-term 
Financial 
Sustainability

Solvency ratio 2:1 Achieved: 
Solvency ratio was 2.3:1 

no variance

optimise  
revenue  
Streams

% revenue growth 11% growth in quality revenue not achieved: 
revenue growth was 0.2% 

Decrease in spending by the customers and SitA tariffs were 
not increased

% variation to gross margin less than 4% variation  
from the budgeted gross surplus margin

Achieved: 
the variation from the budgeted gross 
surplus margin was 2.2%

no variance

leverage  
Assets  
optimally

Calculate the return investment of the 
following assets (ratio):

Hosting services  -  0.5%
network services  -  0.5%
Consultants with consultancy  -
services  0.5%
Major capital projects  -  0.5%

Develop mechanism to report on the roi of 
specified revenue generated fixed assets with 
a view of establishing a baseline

not achieved: 
A reporting mechanism was not developed 

the mechanism to report on roi could not be developed 
due to challenges with the system

optimise  
Working  
Capital

Debtor days Q2: 90 days (2%)
Q3: 85 days (2%)
Q4: 65 days (2%)

not achieved: 
Debtors days were 68.02

SitA challenged with regard to debt collection from clients

improve Cost  
Structure

opex ratio 17% of actual revenue not achieved: 
the opex ratio was 18.57% of revenue

revenue gerenated was less than budgeted for and costs 
increased as a result of inflation, coupled with increased 
labour costs

CuSTOMER

Modernise  
public Service 
operations

progress against initiatives 80% completion against contracted 
deliverables

Achieved:
80% completion against the contracted 
deliverables

no variance

reduce  
Government 
Cost of Doing 
Business

% improvement per unit price:
infrastructure services -
outsourcing services -
transversal contract pricing  -
excluding the it consulting services

5% improvement on benchmarked price Achieved:  
Average price improvement is >10% on 
benchmarked price

no variance

optimise iCt 
infrastructure  
& Services

SitA optimisation matrix:
Quality of service -
Disaster recovery -
Connectivity -
Security -
unified communications -

Convert 10% of our  
existing nGn customers  
to an end-to-end managed service 
infrastructure offering

not achieved: 
less than 10% of our existing nGn 
customers were converted to an end-to-end 
managed service infrastructure offering

the work was performed, but the related proposal was only 
signed in the new financial year, and therefore these sites 
were not considered in the evaluation

improve 
responsiveness

response times in days:
procurement -
proposal Development -
Service Management Centre (SMC) -

10% improvement  
to baseline on 
identified services

Achieved:
Average improvement of 12.19% on baseline 
for identified services

no variance
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perForMAnCe AGAinSt StrAteGiC oBJeCtiVeS – cont.

oBJeCtIVe key peRfoRMAnCe
IndICAtoR

tARget
peRfoRMAnCe Result VARIAnCe explAIned

Consistently  
Meet Service  
levels

% of Service level Agreement (SlA)
metrics achieved:

procurement -
projects -
Data centres -
networks -

95% SlA metrics  
achieved

not achieved: 
Average of 71.75% of SlA metrics achieved

required % not achieved as procurement was included in 
the definition, and had no signed SlAs to be rated on

INTERNAL PROCESSES

extend Service 
Footprint

increase in number  
of customers

2% growth in number of customers Achieved: 
Growth in number of customers: 15.8%

no variance

opportunity  
realisation ratio

Deliver 30% to 40%  
of contracted work  
in the same financial year

Achieved:
81.9% of contracted work delivered in the 
same financial year

no variance

encourage 
innovation 
Culture

number of innovation awards awarded innovation award  
awarded to one  
employee / team

not achieved: 
no innovation awards were awarded in the 
financial year

no substantial innovation recorded

Maximise 
efficiency of 
processes  

SitA quality systems compliance index:
iSo9001 compliance -
itil compliance -
CoBit -
efficiency ratios -

Define quality compliance index Achieved:
An efficiency improvement initiative strategy 
has been implemented

no variance

unqualified audit report with no 
‘emphasis of matter’

unqualified audit  
opinion with no ‘emphasis of matter’

not achieved: 
An unqualified audit opinion was obtained 
and included an emphasis of matter

the Auditor’s report included an emphasis of matters 
referring to irregular expenditure and prior year adjustments

Standardise & 
Automate process 
Standardisation 
of processes

% processes automated 80% of identified processes have  
been automated

not achieved: 
An average of 43.5% processes has been 
automated

resources were focused on the implementation of project 
Vuselela, but should have included FoSS and eCM in the 
processes automated as a whole

number of processes standardised 80% of processes standardised Achieved:
100% erp processes has been standardised 
based on oracle available processes as the 
baseline

no variance

improve Service 
level Management

% of BA/SlAs signed 80% SlAs signed Achieved:  
>80% SlAs signed

no variance

Compliance to itil  
SlM process

80% compliance Achieved:
the SlM process was 100% implemented 
based on agreed deliverables

no variance

improve the 
Management of 
Service portfolio

Completeness of Service portfolio 
Management (SpM)

Define SpM framework Achieved: 
the SpM was established during the year 
under review

no variance
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oBJeCtIVe key peRfoRMAnCe
IndICAtoR

tARget
peRfoRMAnCe Result VARIAnCe explAIned

understand  
Customers‘  
Business & needs

Completeness of CrM implementation 80% of customer business information 
is updated

Achieved:
100% customer business  
information updated

no variance

% of assessment of a 
capability maturity model  
of government department 
it completed

At least 6 departments Achieved: 
13 departments were assessed

no variance

LEARNING & GROWTh

embed SitA  
Culture & Values

Culture and value 
survey results

5% improvement on  
2008 culture survey results

not achieved: 
negative growth of 0.07% attained

Key reasons include high leadership turnover and the impact 
thereof on staff morale

Develop Skills % actual training vs. 
planned training

90% Business interventions implemented as 
per gaps identified

Achieved: 
98% of business interventions were  
completed as per gaps identified

no variance

improve  
Accountability

number of employees trained on 
corporate policies

Awareness sessions conducted on  
5 corporate policies 
reaching 500 employees 
and managers

Achieved: 
Awareness sessions were conducted on  
7 corporate policies reaching more than  
500 employees and managers each

no variance

Attract & retain  
talent

turnover rate of critical skills and best 
performers

7% turnover of critical  
skills and best performers

Achieved:
1.78% turnover of critical skills and best 
performers

no variance

Bee targets per salary band 61% to 62%  race 
46% to 47%  Gender 
1.2% to 1.3%  Disability

Achieved:
race = 64.93%
Gender = 46.13%
Disability = 1.49%

no variance

Build leadership 
& Management 
Competencies

% actual leadership & management 
training vs. planned

90% business interventions implemented as 
per gaps identified

Achieved: 
90% business interventions implemented as 
per gaps identified

no variance

perForMAnCe AGAinSt StrAteGiC oBJeCtiVeS – cont.
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SAlient FeAtureS
For tHe YeAr enDinG 31 MArCH 2010
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(in rand million) 2010 2009
% 

CHAnge

revenue  3,942  3,934 0.20%

Gross profit Margin  681  710 -4.08%

operating Surplus  (22)  52 -142.31%

net Surplus for the Year  32  111 -71.17%

total Assets  2,669  2,612 2.18%

total net Assets  1,510  1,476 2.30%

Cash Flow from operating Activities  192  87 120.69%

Capital expenditure  86  198 -56.57%

Gross profit Margin (%) 17.28% 18.05%

liquidity ratio  2.02:1  1.89:1 

Solvency ratio  2.30:1  2.30:1 

Cash Cover  1.04  0.96 

operating Surplus (%) -0.56% 1.32%

net Surplus for the Year (%) 0.81% 2.82%
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VAlue-ADDeD StAteMent

MARCH

(in rm) 2010 % 2009 %

revenue  3,942  3,934 

paid to Suppliers for Materials & Services  2,162  2,400 

Value Added by operations  1,780 92%  1,534 87%

other income  28 1%  51 3%

interest income  130 7%  178 10%

Total Wealth Created  1,938 100%  1,763 100%

Employees:  1,710 88%  1,432 81%

Salaries, Wages & other Benefits  1,616  1,366 

retirement Benefit Costs  94  66 

Government:

income tax  18 1%  46 3%

Re-Invested to Maintain & Expand Operations:  210 11%  285 16%

Depreciation/Amortisation  178  174 

Accumulated Surplus  32  111 

Total Wealth Distributed  1,938 100%  1,763 100%

totAl WeAltH CreAteD

MArCH 2009

MArCH 2010

81%

16%3%

employees

Government

re-invested to maintain 
and expand operations

88%

11%1%

employees

Government

re-invested to maintain 
and expand operations
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FiVe-YeAr reVieW

31 MARCH

(in rm) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

stAteMent of fInAnCIAl peRfoRMAnCe & CAsH flow

revenue  3,942  3,934  3,608  3,357  2,904 

Gross Surplus 681  710 917 712  532 

other income 28  51 42 20  7 

Finance income 130  178 124 89  65 

Finance Costs 58  74 48 25  12 

operating expenses 732  709 607 592  476 

Surplus before tax 50  156 428 204  115 

income tax expense 18  46 129 61  33 

Surplus for the Year 32  111 299 143  81 

Cash Generated from operations 192  87 271 166  507 

stAteMent of fInAnCIAl posItIon

Current Assets  2,103  1,930  1,927  1,828  1,732 

non-Current Assets 566  682  634  517  464 

Total Assets  2,669  2,612  2,561  2,196  2,196 

net Assets  1,510  1,476  1,366  1,067  923 

Current liabilities  1,043  1,023  1,086  1,172  1,169 

non-Current liabilities  116  113  109  106  104 

Total Net Assets & Total Liabilities  2,669  2,612  2,561  2,196  2,196 

Capital Expenditure  86 198 149  81  124 

CASH GenerAteD FroM operAtionS
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FiVe-YeAr reVieW – cont.

CApitAl expenDiture
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report oF tHe AuDit AnD riSK CoMMittee

in terms of regulations 27(1) (10) (b) and (c) of the public Finance Management Act no. 1 of 1999 (as amended).

the Audit and risk Committee reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit and 

risk Committee Charter; and has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter; and has discharged all of 

its responsibilities contained therein.

in conducting its duties, the Audit and risk Committee has, inter alia, reviewed the following:

the effectiveness of the internal control systems; �

the activities and effectiveness of SitA’s internal Audit Services �  (S-GAS) including its activities, its annual 

internal coverage plan, co-ordination with the Auditor-General, the reports of significant audits and 

investigations performed and the responses of Management to specific recommendations;

the risk areas of the entity’s operations covered in the scope of internal and external audits; �

the independence and objectivity of the Auditor-General; �

the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial information provided by Management and other users of  �

such information;

Accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result of internal and the Auditor-General reports; and �

the entity’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions. �

the Audit and risk Committee is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by Management 

and S-GAS and discussions with the Auditor-General on the results of their audits, that the internal accounting 

controls are adequate to ensure that the financial records may be relied upon for preparing the Annual Financial 

Statements, and that accountability for assets and liabilities is maintained.

Where important matters relating to weaknesses in the control environment have been identified by S-GAS 

during the year under review, these matters have been reported to Management for remedial action.

in the opinion of the Audit and risk Committee, the following area, which has been highlighted by the 

Auditor-General in his report, requires urgent attention: 

Material non-compliance with applicable legislation resulting in/as a result of:

irregular expenditure being �  incurred;

A contract management system not being in �  place; and

improvement in project management �  

the Audit and risk Committee has evaluated the Annual Financial Statements of the company for the year 

ended 31 March 2010 and, based on the information provided to the Audit and risk Committee, considers that 

it complies, in all material respects, with the requirements of the Companies Act no. 61 of 1973, as amended, 

the public Finance Management Act no. 1 of 1999, as amended, the SitA Act no. 88 of 1998, as amended and 

the South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting practice including the statements of Generally 

recognised Accounting practice issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

the Audit and risk Committee concurs that the adoptions of the going concern premise in the preparation 

of the Annual Financial Statements is appropriate. At its meeting held on 20 August 2010, the Audit and risk 

Committee recommended the adoption of the Annual Financial Statements by the Board of Directors.

Prof M I Mphahlele
on behalf of:
Ms K Mdlulwa
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report oF tHe AuDitor-GenerAl 

report on tHe FinAnCiAl StAteMentS

introduction

i have audited the accompanying financial statements of the State information technology Agency (pty) ltd 

(SitA), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2010, the statement of financial 

performance, statement of changes in net assets and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, a 

summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory information and the accounting authority’s report, 

as set out on pages 80 to 137

the accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements

the accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 

in accordance with South African Standards of Generally recognised Accounting practice (SA Standards of 

GrAp) and in the manner required by the public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act no. 1 of 1999) (pFMA) 

and the Companies Act of South Africa. this responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining 

internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; 

and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor-General’s responsibility

As required by section 188 of the Constitution of South Africa and section 4 of the public Audit Act of South 

Africa, 2004 (Act no. 25 of 2004) (pAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 

based on my audit.

i conducted my audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing and General notice 1570 of 2009 

issued in Government Gazette 32758 of 27 november 2009. those standards require that i comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements.  the procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  in making those 

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 

of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 

also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

i believe that the audit evidence i have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit 

opinion.

opinion

in my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the SitA as 

at 31 March 2010, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with SA 

Standards of GrAp and in the manner required by the pFMA and the Companies Act of South Africa.

emphasis of matter

i draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters:

restatement of corresponding figures

As disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2010 have been 

restated as a result of an error discovered during the financial year ending 31 March 2010.

irregular expenditure

As disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements, irregular expenditure to the amount of r214 million was 

incurred as a proper procurement and provisioning process was not followed.

report on otHer leGAl AnD reGulAtorY reQuireMentS 

in terms of the pAA of South Africa and General notice 1570 of 2009, issued in Government Gazette no. 32758 

of 27 november 2009, i include below my findings on the report on predetermined objectives, compliance with 

the pFMA, Companies Act of South Africa and financial management (internal control).
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report oF tHe AuDitor-GenerAl – cont.

Findings

predetermined objectives

usefulness of information

the following criteria were used to assess the usefulness of the planned and reported performance 

information:

Consistency: Has the entity reported on its performance with regard to its objectives, indicators and targets  �

in its approved strategic plan, i.e. are the objectives, indicators and targets consistent between planning and 

reporting documents?

relevance: is there a clear and logical link between the objectives, outcomes, outputs, indicators and  �

performance targets?

Measurability: Are objectives made measurable by means of indicators and targets?  Are indicators well  �

defined and verifiable, and are targets specific, measurable and time bound?

the following audit findings relate to the above criteria:

planned and reported measures not well defined

For the selected objectives, 44% of the planned and reported measures were not clear, with an unambiguous  �

definition to allow for data to be collected consistently. 

planned and reported performance targets not measurable and specific 

For the selected objectives, 22% of the planned and reported targets were not specific in nature and  �

measurable in identifying the required level of performance.

Compliance with laws and regulations

public Finance Management Act (pFMA)

non-adherence to legislation 

Contrary to the requirements of section 53 of the pFMA, the strategic plan and budget for the financial year  �

2010-11 had not been approved by the executive authority of SitA within the prescribed period.

pFMA section 51(1)(a)(iii) and treasury regulation 16A.3.2 require that a fair, equitable, transparent,  �

competitive and cost-effective procurement and provisioning system should be in place. A contract 

management system that facilitates the above was not in place during the financial year to comply with the 

pFMA and treasury regulations.

SitA Act, SitA Act regulations, treasury regulations, national treasury practice notes to 
supply chain management, preferential procurement policy Framework Act (pppFA) and 
pppFA regulations

Contrary to the requirements of the laws and regulations relevant for procurement at SitA, the following were 

identified that  constitute non-compliance: 

non-adherence to legislation

in some instances service level agreements with government departments and other government entities  �

were not signed or concluded as required by section 20(2) of the SitA Act.

no standards relating to the interoperability of information systems between departments and comprehensive  �

information systems security environment for departments were set and approved as required by section 

7(6)(a) of the SitA Act. Consequently, SitA has not been able to certify that acquisitions of information 

technology goods or services by a government department had been in compliance with the standards as 

required by section 7(6)(b) of the SitA Act and paragraph 4.3.3 of the SitA Act regulations.

reporting to the Minister of Finance on supplier performance criteria in respect of all contracts for information  �

technology services and goods for departments in terms of the SitA Act regulation 7.4.1, has not been 

performed.

in some instances the initiation of tender processes occurred without an approved business case and in other  �

instances the business cases did not include a budget for the required goods and services, as required by 

SitA Act regulations paragraphs 8.1.3(a), 8.5(a) and 8.5(h). 

A procurement schedule for the execution of a request for a bid was not always submitted for approval  �

to the designated official at the government department, as required by SitA Act regulations paragraph 

8.2.1(a). in some instances the timelines set in the procurement schedule (project plan) were not achieved, 

as required by SitA Act regulation 8.2.2, with no communication to the government department as to the 

reasons for the delays, as required by SitA Act regulation 8.2.3.

the bid invitations were not approved by the designated officials at the government departments, as required  �

in terms of SitA Act regulation 8.1.7(a). in several cases the bid invitation document had been approved 

on a date after the bid was advertised, which is in contravention of treasury regulation 16A3.2(a). in some 

cases there was no proof that the bid had been advertised as required by treasury regulation 16A3.2(a) and 

16A6.3(c) and SitA Act regulations paragraph 8.3.1.

instances were noted where bid responses received after the approved bid closing date were evaluated. no  �

evidence could be provided that the bid closing date had been extended. this resulted in a contravention of 

treasury regulation 16A3.2(a).
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report oF tHe AuDitor-GenerAl – cont.

the declaration of interest form was not always completed and signed at the meetings of the recommendations  �

Committee (rC), Supplier recommendation Committee (SrC) and Supplier Selection Board (SSB) held to 

evaluate tenders, as required by treasury regulation 16A8.3(a) and 16A8.4 and practice note 7 of 2009-

10 paragraphs 3.2.1.& 4.1.2. i could not confirm that the members of these committees did not have an 

interest in the tenders being evaluated.  

Various instances were noted where the composition of the rC/SrC and Bid evaluation Committee (BeC)  �

did not meet the requirements of SitA Act regulations paragraph 13.3 (e), 13.2(a), 13.4, and practice note 

5 of 2009-10 paragraph 4.1.2(h).

the evaluation documents prepared by the tender evaluation committee were not always in the tender files.  �

i could therefore not confirm that a proper evaluation process was followed and that the entity had complied 

with SitA Act regulation 13.1.

the information used in the evaluation reports did not always agree to bid responses submitted by the  �

bidder. the basis of the evaluation as required by treasury regulation 16 A3.2, section 2(e) of the pppFA, 

and pppFA regulation 8(6) could not be ascertained

the functionality criteria in respect of black economic empowerment (Bee) / historically disadvantaged  �

individuals (HDi) preference points set out in the pppFA were not applied correctly and there were inaccuracies 

in the calculations performed in some instances. in certain instances the calculation could not be re-performed 

as there was no evidence that the BeC calculated the Bee/HDi preference points when evaluating contract. 

this constitutes non-compliance with treasury regulation 16A3.2 and pppFA regulations 8(1), 8(4), 8(5), 

8(6), 13(2), 13(4), 13(5) 13(6), 13(7) and 13(8).

the winning bidder was not always published in the government bulletin, as required by treasury regulation  �

16A6.3(d).

After the conclusion of the tender process, contracts with suppliers were not concluded on a timely basis and  �

in some instances the contract signed with the suppliers could not be provided. this could result in irregular 

expenditure and is in contravention of SitA Act regulation 9.5. 

it was noted that in some instances quotations were requested from suppliers who are not on the list of  �

preferred suppliers. Furthermore, a minimum of three quotes is not always obtained and the reasons for 

it documented. the process of receiving and screening quotes has not been properly implemented. this 

constitutes non-compliance with treasury regulation 16A3.2(a) and national treasury practice note 8 of 

2007-08 paragraph 3.2 and 3.3.3.

internAl Control

i considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements and the report on predetermined 

objectives and compliance with the pFMA, Companies Act of South Africa and the SitA Act, but not for the 

purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. the matters reported below are 

limited to the deficiencies identified during the audit.

leadership

SitA does not have adequate policies, procedures and systems in place to ensure compliance with laws and 

regulations and an effective system of internal control. ongoing monitoring and supervision are not undertaken to 

enable management to determine whether internal control over financial reporting is present and functioning. 

in addition, management did not take corrective action on the following internal control deficiencies identified 

in our audit:

An adequate system for managing contracts has not been implemented to ensure effective supply chain  �

management.

the prior year audit findings have not been substantially addressed.  �

there is lack of consequence management against employees who are found to be continuously in breach  �

of policies and procedures. 

there was a significant portion of application controls that could not be relied upon for audit purposes.  �

these weaknesses in controls included access control, security settings, lack of audit trails and a lack of 

training for employees using the system.

Controls to ensure compliance with procurement laws and regulations have not been designed and  �

implemented effectively, resulting in poor risk management, irregular expenditure and increased exposure 

to fraud.

Financial and performance management

SitA did not have reliable information systems for recording and reporting financial information and therefore 

extensive manual intervention was required to prepare the annual financial statements for the financial year. the 

following internal control deficiencies were identified in the management of financial reporting:

the financial statements were subject to material corrected misstatements resulting from the audit. �

Significant difficulties were experienced during the audit concerning delays and the availability of requested  �

information. 

Manual or automated controls are not designed to ensure that the transactions have occurred, are authorised  �

and are completely and accurately processed.

Monthly management accounts are incomplete and therefore decision-making by management is impacted  �

negatively. 

Delegations of authority are not followed consistently and in some instances could not be provided. �

System reports are not readily available in the financial and reporting system, resulting in ineffective  �

monitoring and reconciliation of accounts.
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report oF tHe AuDitor-GenerAl – cont.

Governance

Governance structures and management did not appropriately address identified significant deficiencies in 

internal control relating to the overall control environment to prevent non-compliance and detect fraud. the 

lack of accurate monthly management accounts limits the effectiveness of the risk identification, management 

and monitoring processes. the following internal control deficiencies were identified in this regard:

the risks in the procurement process have not been adequately identified and therefore appropriate controls  �

were not designed and implemented to ensure compliance with laws and regulations.

An instance was identified where an employee had defrauded the entity but this was not detected by the  �

systems of internal controls within the entity

otHer reportS

investigations

investigations in progress

the Special investigation unit is currently investigating four cases relating to procurement irregularities. �

As at 31 March 2010, there were 20 cases under investigation by internal audit. these investigations related  �

to: 

 procurement irregularities −

Conflicts of interest  −

Alleged irregularities in the human resource and payroll departments.  −

the financial impact of the above investigations has not been quantified at this stage as the investigations are 

still in progress.

investigations completed during the financial year

An investigation into the Gateway project has been concluded and the report was presented to the Minister  �

of public Services and Administration. refer to the directors’ report on page 82 for the detail in this regard.

An investigation into the Cabenet project has been finalised and the matter was handed over to the  �

Commercial Crimes unit of the South African police Service (SApS). refer to the directors’ report on page 82 

for the detail in this regard.

As at 31 March 2010, internal audit had completed 15 investigations for the period under review. twelve  �

relate to irregularities within the procurement process and the remaining three to human resources matters 

and contract and invoicing disputes.

 

pretoria 

30 August 2010
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the Directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Annual Financial 

Statements of SitA (pty) limited, comprising: the Statement of Financial position as at 31 March 2010; the 

Statement of Financial performance for the period ended 31 March 2010; the Statement of Changes in net 

Assets for the year ended 31 March 2010; the Cash Flow Statement for the financial year then ended; the notes 

to the Financial Statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

notes; and the Directors’ report, in accordance with the Standards of Generally recognised Accounting practices 

(GrAp) including any interpretations and directives issued by the international Accounting Standards Board 

(iASB), and in a manner required by the Companies Act of South Africa.

the Directors’ responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to 

the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting 

estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

the Directors’ responsibility also includes maintaining adequate accounting records and an effective system 

of risk management, as well as the preparation of the supplementary schedules included in these Financial 

Statements.

the Directors have made an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concern and have no 

reason to believe that the business will not be a going concern in the year ahead.

the auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the Annual Financial Statements are fairly presented in 

accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Approval of the Annual Financial Statements

the Annual Financial Statements of SitA (pty) ltd, as outlined in the first paragraph, were approved by the Board 

of Directors on 23 August 2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ms Z P Manase
Director

Prof M I Mphahlele
on behalf of:
Ms K Mdlulwa

StAteMent oF reSponSiBilitY BY tHe BoArD oF DireCtorS CertiFiCAte BY tHe CoMpAnY SeCretArY

i, ernst odendaal, in my capacity as Acting Company Secretary of SitA (pty) ltd, hereby certify that, to the best 

of my knowledge and belief, the company has lodged with the registrar of Companies all such returns as are 

required of it in terms of the Companies Act no. 61 of 1973, and that all such returns are true, correct and up 

to date.

Mr Ernst Odendaal
Acting Company Secretary
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DireCtorS’ report

the Directors have pleasure in presenting their report, which forms part of the audited Annual Financial 

Statements of the State information technology Agency (pty) ltd for the year ended 31 March 2010. this report 

and the Annual Financial Statements comply with the requirements of the public Finance Management Act no. 

1 of 1999 (as amended), the SitA Act no. 88 of 1998 (as amended by Act no. 38 of 2002) and the Companies 

Act no. 61 of South Africa. the Board of Directors is the Accounting Authority in terms of section 49(2) (a) of 

the pFMA.

nAture oF BuSineSS 

the nature of the company’s business is the provision of information technology, information systems and 

related services in a maintained information systems security environment to, or on behalf of, participating 

national government departments, provincial government departments, and local government. in this regard 

the company is an agent of the South African government, in accordance with SitA Act no. 88 of 1998 (as 

amended by Act no. 38 of 2002). the company derives all its revenue from iCt goods and services.

reGiStrAtion DetAilS

the company’s registration number is 1999/001899/07. the registered office is 459 tsitsa Street, erasmuskloof, 

pretoria 0001.

oWnerSHip 

the company is wholly owned by the government of the republic of South Africa as represented by the Minister 

of public Service and Administration, Mr r Baloyi.

ContriButeD CApitAl

there were no changes to either the authorised or issued share capital of the company during the year ended 

31 March 2010. Details of the authorised and issued share capital can be found in note 12 to the Annual 

Financial Statements.

FinAnCiAl HiGHliGHtS

the financial performance of the company is set out on page 87 of this report.

the financial performance is summarised as follows:

31 MARCH

(in rand) 2010 2009

revenue 3 941 772 740  3 933 570 542

Gross Surplus   681 491 278    710 151 983

Surplus for the Year Before tax    49 562 216              156 028 682

total Assets 2 669 100 327   2 611 985 476

net Assets 1 510 209 597   1 476 469 218

Cash Generated from operations   191 675 575      87 125 560    

DiViDenDS 

there were no dividends declared for the current financial year (2009: r nil).

internAl ControlS

the Board has the ultimate responsibility for establishing, implementing and maintaining a framework of internal 

controls. the controls are designed to provide cost-effective assurance that assets are safeguarded and that 

liabilities and working capital are efficiently managed. the internal control environments were managed and 

monitored by the internal Audit Department.

puBliC FinAnCe MAnAGeMent ACt (pFMA) 

pFMA Compliance

Various sections of the pFMA place responsibility on the Board to ensure that the company complies with all 

applicable legislation. Any non-compliance with legislation is reported on a quarterly basis to both the executive 

Committee (exCo) and the Board of Directors. 
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Materiality and Significance Framework

A Materiality and Significance Framework has been developed for reporting losses through criminal conduct and 

irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as well as for significant transactions as per section 54(2) of the 

Act, that require ministerial approval. the framework was approved by the Board of Directors and the Minister 

of public Services and Administration for the 2009/10 financial year.

Material losses through Criminal Conduct, irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful 
expenditure

Section 55(2) (b) of the pFMA requires that the company include in the Annual report particulars of any material 

losses through criminal conduct and any irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure that 

occurred during the financial year. Details of such expenditure incurred can be found in note 31 of the Financial 

Statements.

there were no confirmed instances of losses through criminal conduct discovered during the year 

under review.

irregular expenditure and Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure Discovered during the 
previous Financial Year

Gateway

this incident occurred between May 2002 and June 2004 and was detected by Management on 28 June 

2004. the investigation has been concluded and the report was presented to the Minister. Conclusion of 

the investigation has opened the way for the arbitration to proceed. SitA took the decision to withdraw the 

arbitration proceedings.

Cabenet

this incident occurred between September 2001 and September 2003. it was detected in May 2004. this matter 

is in the hands of the Commercial Crime unit (SCCu) of the South African police Service (SApS).  

puBliC priVAte pArtnerSHipS

the company did not enter into public private partnerships during the current financial year.

BASiS oF preSentAtion

the Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally recognised 

Accounting practices (GrAp). in terms of these standards (GrAp), in the absence of a standard or pronouncement 

comprising the GrAp financial reporting frameworks that specifically apply to a transaction, other event or 

condition, Management should apply judgement and may consider the following pronouncements, in descending 

order, in developing an accounting policy for such a transaction, event or condition:

Standards of GrAp that have been issued, but are not yet effective �

ipSAS �

iFrS �

SA Statements of GAAp �

eVentS SuBSeQuent to tHe DAte oF FinAnCiAl poSition

Subsequent to the date of Financial position, the Directors are not aware of any matters or circumstances that 

may materially affect the Financial Statements.

GoinG ConCern

the Directors confirm that they are satisfied that the company has adequate resources to continue in business 

for the twelve-month period from the date of this report. For this reason they continue to adopt the going 

concern basis for preparing the Financial Statements as confirmed in the Statement of responsibility by the 

Board of Directors on page 78.

DireCtorS’ report – cont.
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DireCtorS 

Disclosure of Directors’ remuneration is detailed in Annexure A to the Annual Financial Statements. the following 

individuals were Directors during the period under review:

non-exeCutIVe dIReCtoRs

Ms Z p Manase (Chairperson)

Ms F C potgieter-Gqubulé (Deputy Chairperson)

Ms S V Bvuma

Ms C B Clark

Mr p r Kgame

Mr C C W Kruger

Mr A M luthuli

Ms M Makhekhe-Mokhuane

Ms K Mdlulwa

prof M i Mphahlele

Ms r Sekese

Ms M o Williams

Mr W S Mabena (Alternate)

Ms B M Malongete (Alternate)

Ms n M Mhlakaza (Alternate)

Ms t Moloko (Alternate)

Mr D C niddrie (Alternate)

CoMpAnY SeCretArY

MoVeMents duRIng tHe yeAR

Ms e Strydom term of office ended on 31 January 2010

Mr e H odendaal (Acting) Commenced on 1 February 2010

neW AppointMentS DurinG tHe perioD up to SitA’S AnnuAl GenerAl 
MeetinG (AGM)

non-exeCutIVe dIReCtoRs

Ms F C potgieter-Gqubulé 17 March 2010

Ms S V Bvuma 17 March 2010

Mr p r Kgame 17 March 2010

Mr W S Mabena 17 March 2010

Ms B M Malongete 17 March 2010

Ms K Mdlulwa 17 March 2010

Ms n M Mhlakaza 17 March 2010

Ms t Moloko 17 March 2010

prof M i Mphahlele 17 March 2010

Ms K r Mthimunye 01 May 2010

Mr D C niddrie 17 March 2010

Ms n ntsinde 01 May 2010

Mr G pillay 01 May 2010

Ms n J Shibambu 01 May 2010

exeCutIVe dIReCtoR

Ms n ntsinde (Acting Chief executive 
officer)

01 July 2010

reSiGneD DurinG tHe perioD up to SitA’S AnnuAl GenerAl MeetinG (AGM)

non-exeCutIVe dIReCtoRs

MS C B Clark resigned on 30 April 2010

Ms M Makhekhe-Mokhuane resigned on 30 April 2010

Ms M o Williams resigned on 30 September 2009

DireCtorS’ report – cont.
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StAteMent oF FinAnCiAl poSition  
For tHe YeAr enDeD 31 MArCH 2010

StAteMent oF FinAnCiAl perForMAnCe  
For tHe YeAr enDeD 31 MArCH 2010

(in rand)

31 MARCH

note 2010 2009

Assets

Non-Current Assets  565,523,355 682,113,834 

property, plant & equipment 4  463,749,908  547,981,946 

intangible Assets 5  53,473,112  68,008,909 

Deferred tax Asset 7  48,300,335  66,122,979 

Current Asset  2,103,576,972  1,929,871,642 

Cash & Cash equivalents 8  1,085,151,461  984,717,470 

trade & other receivables 9  767,614,404  891,895,168 

Contract Work in progress 10  67,633,835  19,584,444 

income tax receivable  96,321,270  7,150,939 

prepayments 11  86,856,002  26,523,621 

Total Assets  2,669,100,327  2,611,985,476 

net Assets & lIABIlItIes

Net Assets  1,510,209,597  1,476,469,218 

Contributed Capital 12  1  1 

non-Distributable reserves 13  627,334,546  625,333,736 

Accumulated Surpluses  882,875,050    851,135,481 

lIABIlItIes

Non-Current Liabilities  116,034,829  112,782,143 

interest-Bearing Borrowings 14  5,200,090  10,400,170 

post-retirement employee Benefits 15  110,834,739  102,381,973 

Current Liabilities  1,042,855,901  1,022,734,115 

trade & other payables 16  577,156,708  690,552,726 

Current portion of interest-Bearing Borrowings 14  5,200,080  5,200,080 

provisions 17  —  66,942,801 

income received in Advance 18  460,499,113  260,038,508 

income tax payable  —  — 

Total Net Assets & Liabilities  2,669,100,327  2,611,985,476 

31 MARCH

(in rand) note 2010 2009

revenue 19  3,941,772,740  3,933,570,542 

Cost of Sales 20  3,260,281,462  3,223,418,559 

Gross Surplus  681,491,278  710,151,983 

other income 21  28,356,314  50,908,426 

operating expenses 22  732,092,574  708,848,766 

(Deficit) / Surplus from operating Activities  (22,244,982)  52,211,643 

Finance income 23  129,544,393  177,501,300 

Finance expenses 24  57,737,195  73,684,261 

Surplus Before income tax  49,562,216  156,028,682 

income tax expense 25  17,822,647  45,521,751 

Surplus for the Year Attributable to Shareholder  31,739,569  110,506,931 
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StAteMent oF CHAnGeS in net ASSetS  
For tHe YeAr enDeD 31 MArCH 2010

CASH FloW StAteMent  
For tHe YeAr enDeD 31 MArCH 2010
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total

Balance as at 31 March 2008  1  625,333,736  740,628,551  1,365,962,288 

Surplus for the Year as originally 
Stated

 153,705,828  153,705,828 

prior Year error 35  (43,198,898)  (43,198,898)

restated Balance as at 31 March 2009  1  625,333,736  851,135,481  1,476,469,218 

Adjustment  2,000,810  2,000,810 

Surplus for the Year    31,739,569  31,739,569 

Balance as at 31 March 2010  1  627,334,546  882,875,050  1,510,209,597 

note 12 13

(in rand) note 2010 2009

CAsH flows fRoM opeRAtIng ACtIVItIes

Receipts:

Sale of Goods & Services  4,050,790,953  3,900,751,575 

Finance income received  56,385,495  86,107,766 

Payments:

payment to Suppliers & employees  (3,809,390,436)  (3,716,144,131)

Finance Costs paid  (16,940,106)  (30,316,420)

income tax paid 32.1  (89,170,331)  (153,273,230)

Cash flows from Operating Activities 32.2  191,675,575  87,125,560 

CAsH flows fRoM InVestIng ACtIVItIes

purchase of property, plant & equipment  (64,856,780)  (162,608,546)

purchase of intangible Assets  (21,191,154)  (35,897,453)

proceeds from the Sale of property, plant & equipment  6,430  40,973 

Cash flows from Investing Activities  (86,041,504)  (198,465,026)

CAsH flows fRoM fInAnCIng ACtIVItIes

repayment of interest-Bearing Borrowings  (5,200,080)  (5,200,080)

Cash flows from financing Activities  (5,200,080)  (5,200,080)

increase in Cash & Cash equivalents  100,433,991  (116,539,546)

Cash & Cash equivalents at Beginning of Year  984,717,470  1,101,257,016 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at End of Year  1,085,151,461  984,717,470 
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noteS to tHe AnnuAl FinAnCiAl StAteMentS 
For tHe YeAr enDeD 31 MArCH 2010

1.  reportinG entitY

the State information technology Agency (pty) ltd (SitA) is a private company domiciled in South Africa. 

the company is primarily involved in the provision of information technology, information systems and 

related services in a maintained systems security environment on behalf of participating government 

departments, including provincial and local government departments. the Financial Statements for the 

year ended 31 March 2010 were authorised in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors 

on 23 August 2010.

2. BASiS oF prepArAtion

these Financial Statements are presented in South African rands (r), which is the company’s functional 

currency. they have been prepared on the historical cost basis unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Statement of Compliance

the Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally 

recognised Accounting practices (GrAp) including any interpretations and directives issued by the 

international Accounting Standards Board (iASB). in terms of these standards (GrAp), in the absence 

of a standard or pronouncement comprising the GrAp financial reporting frameworks that specifically 

applies to a transaction, other event or condition, Management should apply judgement and may 

consider the following pronouncements, in descending order, in developing an accounting policy for 

such a transaction, event or condition: 

Standards of GrAp (Generally recognised Accounting practices) that have been issued, but are not  �

yet effective

ipSAS (international public Sector Accounting Standards) �

iFrS (international Financial reporting Standards) �

SA Statements of GAAp (Generally Accepted Accounting practice) �

the accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. the company 

has adopted the following new GrAp standards:

GrAp4 the effects of Changes in Foreign exchange rates

GrAp5 Borrowing Costs

GrAp9 revenue from exchange transactions

GrAp11 Construction Contracts 

GrAp12 inventories

GrAp13 leases

GrAp14 events After reporting Date

GrAp17 property, plant & equipment

GrAp19 provisions, Contingent liabilities & Contingent Assets

GrAp102 intangible Assets

the adoption of these standards and their interpretations did not have any effect on the Statement of 

Financial position, Statement of Financial performance and Cash Flow Statement of the company or any 

additional disclosure, as no events occurred that these standards and interpretations relate.

paragraphs 11-15 of GrAp1: presentation of financial statements require entities to provide information 

in their Financial Statements on whether resources were obtained and used in accordance with the 

legally adopted budget. in order to ensure full compliance with GrAp1, national treasury has prescribed 

the inclusion of a reconciliation in the notes to the Financial Statements, as the minimum for compliance 

with paragraphs 11-15 of GrAp 1. refer to note 33.

2.2 use of estimates and Judgements

the preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with the basis of preparation requires management 

to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported 

amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses. the estimates and associated assumptions 

are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under 

the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about carrying values of 

assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from 

these  estimates.

the estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only 

that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and 

future periods.

3. SiGniFiCAnt ACCountinG poliCieS

the accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these 

Financial  Statements.
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noteS to tHe AnnuAl FinAnCiAl StAteMentS – cont. 
For tHe YeAr enDeD 31 MArCH 2010

3.1 Foreign Currency transactions

transactions in currencies other than the company’s functional currency are defined as foreign currency 

transactions. transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the 

transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into 

the functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. non-monetary assets and 

liabilities that are measured in terms of the historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the 

exchange rate ruling at the original transaction date. in order to reduce exposure to fluctuations in 

foreign currency exchange rates, the company enters into forward exchange contracts for all foreign 

currency transactions. realised and unrealised gains and losses on forward exchange contracts entered 

into as hedges are recognised as income and expenses on the same basis and over the same period as 

the hedged assets or liabilities. Any foreign exchange differences are recognised in the surplus or deficit 

in the period in which the difference occurs.

3.2  Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Financial position when the company 

has become party to contractual provisions of the financial instruments.

A financial asset and a financial liability is initially recognised at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial 

asset or a financial liability not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or a financial liability.

After initial recognition, financial assets, including derivative assets, are measured at their fair 

values, without any transaction costs it may incur on sale or other disposal, except for the following 

financial assets:

loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. �

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method, except for financial liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit. Financial liabilities at fair 

value through surplus or deficit, including derivatives that are liabilities, are measured at fair value.

At the end of each reporting period, financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed whether 

there is any objective evidence of impairment. if objective evidence exists that an impairment loss has 

been incurred, such loss is recognised in surplus or deficit. the amount of the impairment loss is measured 

as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 

flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in the 

impairment loss is reversed through surplus or deficit.

A gain or loss on a financial asset or a financial liability classified as at fair value through the surplus or 

deficit, including a derivative asset or liability, is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

3.3  property, plant and equipment

 a) recognition and Measurement

items of property, plant and equipment, except land, are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation 

and accumulated impairment losses. land is stated at cost and is not depreciated. the cost of items of 

property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable 

purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, and any costs directly attributable to 

bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended by Management.

Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal amount, its cost is its fair value as at the date 

of acquisition.

purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of 

that equipment.

Where components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 

accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing 

the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment at disposal date 

and are recognised in surplus or deficit.

 b) Subsequent Costs

the cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying 

amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will 

flow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably. the carrying amount of the replaced part is 

derecognised. repairs and maintenance are not capitalised, they are recognised in the surplus or deficit 

as incurred.
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noteS to tHe AnnuAl FinAnCiAl StAteMentS – cont. 
For tHe YeAr enDeD 31 MArCH 2010

 c) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each 

item of property, plant and equipment. land is not depreciated. Depreciation begins when the item of 

property, plant and equipment is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating 

in the manner intended by Management. Depreciation ceases when the asset is de-recognised.

the estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Buildings 17 – 50 years

Computer equipment 3 – 8 years

office Furniture 7 – 10 years

Vehicles 9 – 10 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and estimated residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. the 

effect of changes in the depreciation methods, useful lives and estimated residual values are accounted 

for in accordance with the Standard on Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting estimates and errors 

as a change in estimate.

 d) De-recognition

the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised on disposal or when 

no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. the gain or loss 

arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 

difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset at the disposal date and is 

recognised in surplus or deficit.

3.4 intangible Assets

intangible assets that are acquired by the company are initially measured and recognised at cost. 

Subsequently they are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for 

impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Amortisation 

is charged to surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible 

assets. the amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed annually and any changes 

are accounted for in terms of the Standard on Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting estimates 

and errors.

intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the 

cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. the useful life of an intangible asset 

with an indefinite useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment 

continues to be supportable. if not, the change in the useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a 

prospective basis.

An estimate of an asset’s residual value is based on the amount recoverable from disposal using prices 

prevailing at the date of the estimate for the sale of a similar asset that has reached the end of its useful 

life and has operated under conditions similar to those in which the asset will be used. the residual value 

is reviewed at least at each reporting date.

expenditure on an intangible item is recognised as an expense when it is incurred unless it forms part of 

the cost of an intangible asset that meets the recognition criteria.

 a) Computer Software

Computer software is initially recognised at cost. Subsequently it is carried at cost less accumulated 

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over 

the estimated useful life of the software not exceeding three years. Annual license fees on software are 

expensed in the year of accrual.

 b) research and Development

expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical 

knowledge and understanding, is recognised in surplus or deficit in the year in which it is incurred.

there are no development costs.

3.5 leases

 a) lessee

leases where the company does not retain a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are 

classified as operating leases. payments made under operating leases are recognised in surplus or deficit 

on a straight-line basis over the lease term. lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part 

of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Assets leased to third parties under operating leases are included in property, plant and equipment in the 

Statement of Financial position.
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 b) lessor

rental income (net of any incentives given to the lessee) from operating leases is recognised on a straight-

line basis over the term of the relevant lease. lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part 

of the total rental income, over the term of the lease.

initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying 

amount of the leased asset and recognised, as an integral part of the total lease income on a straight-line 

basis, over the lease term.

there are no items of property, plant and equipment classified as finance leased assets.

 c) Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a lease

the company ensures that the following two requirements are met, in order for an arrangement 

transacted by the company to be classified as a lease in terms of GrAp 13:

Fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of an asset or assets, and this fact is not  �

necessarily explicitly stated by the contract but rather implied; and

the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, if one of the following conditions  �

is met:

the purchaser has the ability or right to operate the asset or direct others to operate the  −

asset; or

the purchaser has the ability or right to control physical access to the asset; or −

there is only a remote possibility that parties other than the purchaser will take more than an  −

insignificant amount of the output of the asset, and the price that the purchaser will pay is 

neither fixed per unit of output nor equal to the current market price at the time of delivery.

the company’s assessment of whether an arrangement contains a lease is made at inception of the 

arrangement, with reassessment occurring in the event of limited changes in circumstances as specified 

by GrAp 13. 

3.6 Contract Work in progress

Contract work in progress is stated at cost plus profit recognised to date, less provisions for foreseeable 

losses and less progress billings. Costs include all expenditure related directly to specific projects and an 

allocation of fixed and variable overheads incurred in the company contract activities based on normal 

operating activities.

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract work, 

claims and incentive payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and can 

be measured reliably.

As soon as the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised in surplus 

or deficit in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. Contract expenses are recognised as 

incurred unless they create an asset related to future contract activity.

When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to the 

extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable.

3.7 impairment

the carrying amount of the company’s tangible and intangible assets with a finite useful life, other than 

financial assets, work in progress and deferred taxation assets, is reviewed at each reporting date to 

determine if there is any indication of impairment. if such an indication exists, the recoverable amount 

of the asset is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any). Where an asset does not 

generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the company estimates the recoverable 

amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. For intangible assets that have an 

indefinite useful life, the recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date and whenever there is 

an indication that the asset may be impaired.

An impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds 

its recoverable amount.

the recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value 

in use. Fair value less costs to sell is determined by ascertaining the current market value of an asset 

after deducting any costs relating to the realisation of the asset. in assessing the value in use, the 

expected future cash flows from the asset are discounted to their net present values using a pre-taxation 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 

to the asset.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed if the recoverable amount increases as a result of 

a change in the estimates previously used to determine the recoverable amount, to an amount not 

higher than the carrying amount that would have resulted, net of depreciation and amortisation, had no 

impairment loss been recognised. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately 

if the impairment was recognised previously as an expense.

noteS to tHe AnnuAl FinAnCiAl StAteMentS – cont. 
For tHe YeAr enDeD 31 MArCH 2010
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3.8 employee Benefits 

 a) Defined Contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-retirement benefit plan under which the company pays fixed 

contributions into a separate company and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further 

amounts. obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an 

employee benefit expense in surplus or deficit when they are due. prepaid contributions are recognised 

as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

 b) Defined Benefit plan

the post-retirement benefit plan is a defined benefit plan. Medical benefits are provided for all permanent 

employees via three medical funds. All contributions paid are charged to surplus or deficit in the year 

to which they relate. the company provides post-retirement health care benefits to a closed group of 

qualifying employees and retirees. the entitlement to post-retirement health care benefits is based on the 

qualifying employee remaining in service up to retirement age. the expected cost of these benefits are 

accrued for over the period of employment, using the projected unit credit method. Annual valuations 

of these obligations are carried out by independent qualified actuaries. Any actuarial gains or losses 

arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are deferred and recognised 

in surplus or deficit over the remaining working lives of employees.

 c) termination Benefits

termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the company is demonstrably committed, 

without a realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment 

before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to 

encourage voluntary redundancy.

termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognised as an expense if the company has made 

an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number 

of acceptances can be estimated reliably. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the 

reporting period are discounted to their present values.

 d) Short-term Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as 

the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus plans if the 

company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service 

provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

3.9 provisions

provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 

past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the 

amount can be reliably estimated. provisions are not made for future operating losses.

provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the 

obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 

the risks specific to the obligation. the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised 

as an interest expense.

3.10  revenue

revenue comprises amounts invoiced to customers for goods and services, and excludes value 

added tax.

the sale of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are 

transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is considered probable, the associated costs and 

possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing Management involvement 

with the goods.

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue 

associated with the transaction shall be recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the 

transaction at the reporting date. the outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the 

following conditions are satisfied:

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.(a)  

it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will (b)  

flow to the entity.

the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably.(c)  

the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be (d)  

measured reliably.

noteS to tHe AnnuAl FinAnCiAl StAteMentS – cont. 
For tHe YeAr enDeD 31 MArCH 2010
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noteS to tHe AnnuAl FinAnCiAl StAteMentS – cont. 
For tHe YeAr enDeD 31 MArCH 2010

3.11 Finance income

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and adjustments in terms of iAS 39 

interpreted in Circular 9/2006 issued by SAiCA.

interest is recognised on the time proportion basis using the effective interest method over the period to 

maturity, when it is determined that such income will accrue to the company.

3.12 Finance expenses

Finance expenses comprise interest payable on borrowings and calculated and recognised in surplus or 

deficit using the effective interest method. Also included is the adjustment required in terms of iAS 39 

interpreted in Circular 9/2006 issued by SAiCA.

3.13 taxation

income tax comprises current and deferred tax. income tax expense is recognised in surplus or deficit except 

to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in the Statement of Changes in net Assets.

Current taxation comprises tax payable calculated on the basis of the expected taxable income for the 

year, using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment of 

the tax payable for previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. the amount 

of deferred tax provided for is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying 

amount of the assets and liabilities using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 

date. the effects of deferred taxation of any changes in tax rates is recognised in surplus or deficit, except 

to the extent that it relates to items previously charged and credited directly to the Statement of Changes 

in net Assets.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, 

to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the associated 

unused tax losses and deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed 

at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax 

benefit will be realised.

3.14  related parties

the company operates in an economic environment currently denominated by entities directly or 

indirectly owned by the South African government. As a result of the constitutional independence 

that is guaranteed for the different spheres of government, only parties within the national sphere of 

government are considered to be related parties.

Key Management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, 

directing and controlling the activities of the company.

Close family members of key Management personnel are considered to be those family members who 

may be expected to influence, or be influenced by key Management individuals in their dealings with 

the company.

All related party transactions are also disclosed in terms of the requirements of ipSAS 20 related party 

Disclosures. the objective of the Standard and the Financial Statements is to provide relevant and reliable 

information and therefore materiality is considered in the disclosure of these transactions.

3.15 irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure

irregular expenditure is defined as expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with a 

requirement of any applicable legislation.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure represents expenditure that was made in vain and would have been 

avoided had reasonable care been exercised.

All irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure are charged in surplus or deficit in the period in which 

they are identified.

3.16 Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash includes cash-on-hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid 

investments that are held with registered banking institutions with maturities of three months or less 

and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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4. propertY, plAnt AnD eQuipMent 

(in rand) lAnd BuIldIngs
CoMputeR 

eQuIpMent
offICe 

fuRnItuRe VeHICles totAl

At 31 MARCH 2010

COST

Balance at Beginning of Year  22,742,785  238,144,933  697,887,657  111,274,548  886,529 1,070,936,452 

Additions & improvements  –  17,737,036  43,639,963  3,055,725  424,056  64,856,780 

Adjustment  2,000,810  –  –  –  –  2,000,810 

Disposals  –  –  (157,798,749)  (6,784,128)  (161,828)  (164,744,705)

Balance at end of Year  24,743,595  255,881,969  583,728,871  107,546,145  1,148,757  973,049,337 

ACCuMuLATED 
DEPRECIATION

Balance at Beginning of Year  –  46,956,839  437,119,647  37,991,491  886,529  522,954,506 

Depreciation Charge  –  12,827,581  112,456,993  16,493,713  4,938  141,783,225 

impairment  –  –  158,417  7,810  –  166,227 

Disposals  –  –  (149,056,033)  (6,386,668)  (161,828)  (155,604,529)

Balance at end of Year  –  59,784,420  400,679,024  48,106,346  729,639  509,299,429 

Net Carrying Amount  24,743,595  196,097,549  183,049,847  59,439,799  419,118  463,749,908 

At 31 MARCH 2009

COST

Balance at Beginning of Year  22,742,785  218,397,803  736,705,607  82,395,529  886,529 1,061,128,253 

Additions & improvements  –  20,000,578  109,924,875  32,683,093  –  162,608,546 

Disposals  –  (253,448)  (148,742,825)  (3,804,074)  –  (152,800,347)

Balance at end of Year  22,742,785  238,144,933  697,887,657  111,274,548  886,529 1,070,936,452 

ACCuMuLATED 
DEPRECIATION

 

Balance at Beginning of Year  –  37,530,342  461,976,257  27,372,788  886,529  527,765,916 

Depreciation Charge  –  9,675,635  120,522,579  13,553,607  –  143,751,821 

impairment  –  –  1,782,291  7,714  –  1,790,005 

Disposals  –  (249,138)  (147,161,480)  (2,942,618) –  (150,353,236)

Balance at end of Year  –  46,956,839  437,119,647  37,991,491  886,529  522,954,506 

Net Carrying Amount  22,742,785  191,188,094  260,768,010  73,283,057  –  547,981,946 

none of the items of property, plant and equipment are held under finance lease. 

the carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment are equal to their fair values.

A register of land and buildings is available for inspection at the registered office of the company.

property, plant and equipment with an estimated carrying value of r37.9 million (2009: r38.9 million) 

were pledged as security for borrowings of r10.4 million (2009: r15.6 million). refer to note 14.

5. intAnGiBle ASSetS    

(in rand) 2010 2009

Cost 

Balance at Beginning of Year  162,174,360  139,394,898 

Additions & improvements  21,191,154  35,897,453 

Disposals  (3,783,601)  (13,117,991)

Balance at end of Year  179,581,913  162,174,360 

ACCuMulAted AMoRtIsAtIon

Balance at Beginning of Year  94,165,451  78,624,221 

Amortisation Charge  35,726,951  28,659,221 

Disposals  (3,783,601)  (13,117,991)

Balance at end of Year  126,108,801  94,165,451 

Net Carrying Amount  53,473,112  68,008,909 

intangible assets comprise of software and licenses.

6. CApitAl CoMMitMentS

At year-end the company has a budgeted amount of r93.8million (2009: r57 million) that has been 

approved for capital acquisitions and has not yet been contracted for.
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7.  DeFerreD tAx ASSet

Deferred tax asset is attributable to the following:

(in rand)

stAteMent 
of fInAnCIAl 

peRfoRMAnCe 
MoVeMent 2010 2009

Movement in impairment on trade receivables  2,098,743  17,373,314  15,274,571 

Accrual for leave pay Benefits  3,285,941  18,120,103  14,834,162 

post-retirement Medical Benefits  2,366,775  31,033,727  28,666,952 

income received in Advance  56,128,970  128,939,752  72,810,782 

performance Bonus  (18,743,984) —  18,743,984 

Circular 9 Adjustment  1,359,248  1,293,015  (66,233)

leases  (2,019,220)  1,826,151  3,845,371 

prepayments  (16,893,067)  (24,319,681)  (7,426,614)

Section 24C Allowance  (76,418,553)  (128,769,829)  (52,351,276)

Depreciation/Amortisation  5,628,913  (22,579,807)  (28,208,720)

Calculated tax loss  25,383,590  25,383,590 —

 (17,822,644)  48,300,335  66,122,979 

ReConCIlIAtIon Between openIng & ClosIng BAlAnCe

Deferred tax Asset at Beginning of Year  66,122,979  39,763,066 

Statement of Financial performance Movement  (17,822,644)  26,359,913 

Current Year −  (17,822,644)  10,115,971 

prior Year − —  16,243,942 

Deferred Tax Asset at End of Year  48,300,335  66,122,979 

8.  CASH AnD CASH eQuiVAlentS

(in rand) 2010 2009

RIng-fenCed CAsH  534,092,722  447,478,248 

iFMS project −  66,662,635  41,542,040 

income received in Advance −  392,648,087  107,222,720 

iBM Weighting Factor − —  225,368,488 

Municipal Deposits −  1,437,000 —

post-retirement Medical Benefits −  73,345,000  73,345,000 

otHeR suRplus CAsH  551,058,739  537,239,222 

 1,085,151,461  984,717,470 

AnAlysIs of otHeR  551,058,739  537,239,222 

Current Account Balance −  10,180,819  46,185,439 

Call Account Balance −  212,366,454  71,968,014 

investment Account Balance −  328,498,466  419,068,425 

Cash Float −  13,000  17,344 

ring-fenced cash represents cash received from customers to be utilised for specific projects in future, 

deposits held for rental and municipalities and money that has been ring-fenced to manage the immediate 

risk of an uncovered post-retirement medical benefit liability.

the company’s exposure to interest rate risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and liabilities are 

disclosed in note 26. 

the average rate of interest on the cash balances was 8.24 % ( 2009 : 11.9%)
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9.  trADe AnD otHer reCeiVABleS

(in rand) 2010 2009

trade receivables  836,031,822  941,093,242 

less: impairment of trade receivables  (79,476,637)  (69,875,647)

 756,555,185  871,217,595 

other receivables  11,059,219  20,677,573 

 767,614,404  891,895,168 

refer to note 27 for the breakdown of trade receivables due from related parties.

the company’s exposure to credit and currency risk and impairment losses related to trade and other 

receivables are disclosed in note 26.

10.  ContrACt WorK in proGreSS       

(in rand) 2010 2009

Projects in Progress  67,633,835  19,584,444

this amount represents expenditure incurred to date on projects for which billing has not yet taken 

place, as milestones have not yet been reached. this amount has been considered for impairment and 

is recoverable.

there are no amounts related to advances received as well as retentions, as no billing was done as at 31 

March 2010.

11.  prepAYMentS

(in rand) 2010 2009

Deposits —  894,504 

Software Maintenance Costs  86,856,002  25,629,117 

 86,856,002 26,523,621

prepayments relate to payments made for software maintenance costs.

12.  ContriButeD CApitAl

(in rand) 2010 2009

Authorised & issued

one ordinary Share at r1.00 each  1 1

13.  non-DiStriButABle reSerVeS

(in rand) 2010 2009

opening Balance  625,333,736  625,333,736 

Movement  2,000,810 —

Closing Balance  627,334,546  625,333,736 

the State information technology Agency Act, 1998 (Act no.88 of 1998) resulted in the reduction of 

the company’s share capital from r625 333 737 to r1. Approval was granted by national treasury 

to transfer the difference to a non-distributable reserve. the movement during the current financial 

year relates to the revised carrying value of the erasmuskloof property. it is the difference between the 

originally capitalised cost and the value per documentation at the Deeds office.

14.  intereSt-BeArinG BorroWinGS

(in rand) 2010 2009

long-term loan  10,400,170  15,600,250 

less: Current portion  (5,200,080)  (5,200,080)

 5,200,090  10,400,170 

 terms and repayment Schedule

this loan represents the long-term loan from Denel (proprietary) limited in accordance with the business 

transfer agreement between Denel and the company on incorporation.

this loan is secured by a mortgage bond over the erasmuskloof property with a carrying amount of r37.9 

million (2009: r38.9million) (refer note 4).
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it bears interest at a fixed rate of 9% per annum up to 31 March 2010 whereafter the rate will change 

to the Government r186 Bond coupon rate. the loan is repayable in equal annual instalments effective 

1 April 2002. the last instalment is payable on 31 March 2012.

(in rand) 2010 2009

payable within 1 Year  5,200,080  5,200,080 

payable between 1 & 5 Years  5,200,090  10,400,170 

total Borrowings  10,400,170  15,600,250 

less: Current portion  (5,200,080)  (5,200,080)

 5,200,090  10,400,170 

15.  poSt-retireMent MeDiCAl BeneFitS

(in rand) 2010 2009

present Value of unfunded obligations 84,010,040 78,264,000

unrealised Actuarial Gains 26,824,699 24,117,973

 110,834,739 102,381,973

Movement in the present Value of the Defined Contribution liability

(in rand) 2010 2009

Balance at Beginning of Year 102,381,973 93,213,025

Statement of Financial performance 
Movement

8,452,766 9,168,948

Current Service Cost 3,097,977 3,045,095

interest Cost 7,231,600 7,550,222

Contributions paid (234,515) (201,195)

realised Actuarial Gain (1,642,296) (1,225,174)

Balance at end of Year 110,834,739 102,381,973

principal Actuarial Assumptions

(in rand) 2010 2009

long-term Discount rate before tax 8.0% 8.9%

long-term Medical inflation rate 6.5% 7.4%

normal retirement Age 60 years 60 years

the company provides for post-retirement medical benefits to the following qualifying employees: 
 

a)  ex-infoplan employees who transferred to the company on 1 April 1999 and are still members of the 

u-Med medical aid fund.

b)  ex-SApS employees who transferred to the company on 1 April 1999, and

c)  other former public sector employees who transferred to the company on or after 1 April 1999 and  

remain members of their respective medical aids.

the amounts due in respect of the company’s liability regarding the post-retirement medical benefit 

has been determined by independent actuaries as at 31 March 2010 using the projected unit credit 

method.

 Sensitivity Analysis

lIABIlIty
R

CHAnge In 
lIABIlIty

%

increase of 1% 105,113,352 25.12%

Base liability 84,010,040 0%

Decrease of 1% 68,287,499 -18.72%

15.1  eMploYee BeneFitS

All permanent employees are members of the following independent funds:

 Denel retirement Fund

the Denel retirement Fund is a defined contribution fund, managed by a Board of trustees in terms of 

the pension Funds Act of 1956 (Act no. 24 of 1956). the company has no financial liability in respect of 

this fund.

 Government employees pension Fund

retirement benefits are provided by membership of the Government employees pension Fund which is a 

defined benefit fund. the company’s responsibility regarding the funding of the shortfall of the pension 

fund is limited to the current contributions made on behalf of its employees. the government of South 

Africa as the employer is responsible for any shortfall in this fund. this responsibility is governed by the 
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General pensions Act no. 29 of 1979 and Government employees pension law, proclamation 21 of 

1996. 

 SitA pension Fund

the SitA pension Fund, which is administered by Alexander Forbes, is a defined contribution fund. the 

company has no financial liability in respect of this fund.

 Current Medical Benefits

the company contributes to three medical aid schemes for the benefit of permanent employees and their 

dependants. Contributions charged against income amounted to r68.2 million (2009: r60.9 million). 

the company’s financial obligation is limited to the current company contributions.

16.  trADe AnD otHer pAYABleS

(in rand) 2010 2009

trade payables  493,503,179  620,048,436 

leave pay Accrual  69,759,210  58,023,708 

provision for 13th Cheque  5,488,566  5,359,690 

FeC liability  2,509,966  3,734,443 

non-trade payables  5,895,787  3,386,449 

 577,156,708  690,552,726 

the company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade and other payables is disclosed in 

note 26.

17.  proViSionS

(in rand) 2010 2009

Balance at Beginning of Year  66,942,801  73,500,000 

Additional provision raised during the Year  7,663,860  20,258,006 

utilised during the Year  (74,606,661)  (26,815,205)

Balance at end of Year —  66,942,801 

no provision for performance bonuses has been made during the 2009/10 financial year.

18.  inCoMe reCeiVeD in ADVAnCe 

(in rand) 2010 2009

unearned revenue  67,851,026  86,744,017 

ring-Fenced Cash (refer note 8)  392,648,087  107,222,720 

Deferred income —  66,071,771 

 460,499,113  260,038,508 

ring-fenced cash represents monies received from customers to be utilised for specific projects in 

future periods.

Deferred income represents cash received as well as monies billed in advance for work in progress and 

will be recognised as revenue when it becomes receivable.

19.  reVenue

(in rand) 2010 2009

project revenue  2,419,909,718  2,174,771,650 

Agency revenue  433,405,890  821,250,680 

infrastructure revenue  1,088,457,132  937,548,212 

 3,941,772,740  3,933,570,542 

refer to note 27 for the breakdown of revenue earned from related parties.

20.  CoSt oF SAleS

(in rand) 2010 2009

Direct Depreciation  115,897,242  118,846,646 

Direct Amortisation  25,490,201  25,651,388 

Direct labour  1,333,222,197  1,088,320,235 

Service Delivery overheads  1,785,671,822  1,990,600,290 

 3,260,281,462  3,223,418,559
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21.  otHer inCoMe

(in rand) 2010 2009

Catering Surplus  155,496  2,927,874 

Sundry income  12,362,943  30,314,093 

Govtech Surplus  15,837,875  17,666,459 

 28,356,314  50,908,426 

22.  operAtinG expenSeS

the following separately disclosable items are included in operating expenses:

(in rand) 2010 2009

Auditor’s Remuneration

Audit fees  7,700,466  6,935,629 

Amortisation

total Amortisation  35,726,951  28,659,221 

included in Cost of Sales  (25,490,201)  (25,651,388)

non-recoverable Amortisation  10,236,750  3,007,833 

Depreciation

total Depreciation  141,783,225  143,751,821 

included in Cost of Sales  (115,897,242)  (118,846,646)

non-recoverable Depreciation  25,885,983  24,905,175 

Bad Debts Written Off —  18,446,272 

Govtech Expenses  16,364,338  17,872,035 

Impairment Movement

property, plant & equipment  170,747  1,790,005 

trade & other receivables  9,600,990  12,439,579 

 9,771,737  14,229,584 

Loss on Disposal of Assets  9,146,612  2,793,830 

Operating Lease Expense 40,714,739  42,725,301 

Operating Lease Income  6,778,685  5,911,356 

Research Costs  7,604,661  3,876,561 

Staff Costs

total Staff Costs  1,709,645,728  1,432,386,714 

included in Cost of Sales  (1,333,222,197)  (1,088,320,235)

Non-Recoverable Staff Costs  376,423,531  344,066,479 

refer to Annexure A for Directors’ remuneration.

23.  FinAnCe inCoMe

(in rand) 2010 2009

Fair Value Adjustment on trade receivables 
– SAiCA Circular 9/2006

73,158,898  91,393,534 

interest on Cash Balances  56,385,495  86,107,766 

 129,544,393  177,501,300 

24.  FinAnCe expenSeS

(in rand) 2010 2009

Fair Value Adjustment on trade payables 
– SAiCA Circular 9/2006

 41,247,089  43,367,841 

Foreign exchange loss  5,583,727  21,560,446 

interest paid  10,906,379  8,755,974 

 57,737,195  73,684,261 



114
AnnuAl RepoRt 2010

115
AnnuAl RepoRt 2010

noteS to tHe AnnuAl FinAnCiAl StAteMentS – cont. 
For tHe YeAr enDeD 31 MArCH 2010

25.  inCoMe tAx expenSe

(in rand) 2010 2009

CuRRent tAx expense

Current period  —  58,308,316 

Adjustment for prior periods  —  13,573,348 

 —  71,881,664 

defeRRed tAx expense

origination & reversal of temporary Differences  43,206,237  (10,115,971)

Calculated tax loss  (25,383,590)  — 

Adjustment for prior periods  —  (16,243,942)

 17,822,647  (26,359,913)

Total Income Tax Expense  17,822,647  45,521,751 

ReConCIlIAtIon of effeCtIVe tAx RAte

Surplus for the period  31,739,566  110,506,931 

total income tax expense  17,822,647  45,521,751 

Surplus Excluding Income Tax  49,562,213  156,028,682 

2010 2009

% R % R

income tax using the Company’s 
Domestic tax rate

28.0%  13,877,420 28.0%  43,688,031 

under (over) provision in prior Year 0.0%  — -1.7%  (2,670,501)

non-Deductible expenses 8.0%  3,945,227 2.9%  4,504,221 

Effective Income Tax 36.0%  17,822,647 29.2%  45,521,751 

26.  FinAnCiAl inStruMentS

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company when the customer or counter party to the financial 

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the company’s receivables 

from customers.

the company limits its counter party exposure arising from money market instruments by dealing only 

with well-established financial institutions of high credit standing. exposure relating to trade and other 

receivables, which mainly consist of national, provincial and local government departments, is managed 

by entering into contractual agreements that indicate payment terms of the services rendered. these 

customers fall within the ambit of the public Finance Management Act,1999 (Act no. 1 of 1999) and 

the Municipal Finance Management Act no.56 of 2003. these legislations prescribe that suppliers of 

products and services be paid within 30 days, or as stipulated by agreements entered into.

the carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. the maximum credit 

exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

CARRyIng AMount

(in rand) note 2010 2009

trade & other receivables 9  767,614,404  891,895,168 

Cash & Cash equivalents 8 1,085,151,461  984,717,470 

1,852,765,865  1,876,612,638 

Forward exchange Contracts  79,119,883  93,900,576 

the maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by  
major customer cluster was:

CARRyIng AMount

(in rand) note 2010 2009

Crime & prevention Cluster 197,006,597  252,980,761 

economic & investment Cluster 44,861,586  21,700,930 

Government, Administration & international 
Cluster

69,252,123  90,917,007 

Social Cluster 104,797,375  69,086,500 

 provincial & local Departments  340,637,504  436,532,397 

 756,555,185  871,217,595 
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 impairment losses

the aging of trade receivables net of the impairment loss at the reporting date was:

CARRyIng AMount

(in rand) note 2010 2009

not past Due  434,436,210  583,370,010 

past Due 0 – 30 Days  118,267,092  196,992,049 

past Due 31 – 120 Days  108,587,848  60,618,790 

past Due 121 – 365 Days  95,264,035  (17,764,893)

past Due – More than 1 Year  —  48,001,639 

 756,555,185  871,217,595 

the due date of invoices is determined as being 30 days after the invoice date.

the movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was 

as follows:

(in rand) 2010 2009

Balance at Beginning of Year  69,875,647  57,436,068 

impairment loss recognised  9,600,990  12,439,579 

Balance at end of Year  79,476,637  69,875,647 

the impairment loss is based on specifically identified invoices that are considered doubtful based on 

information in the company’s possession. each invoice is analysed individually and a decision to impair 

is made.

b) liquidity risk

liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall 

due. the company’s approach in managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always 

have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under normal and stressed conditions, without 

incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company’s reputation. this risk is managed by 

maintaining adequate cash reserves by continuously monitoring cash flow forecasts, actual cash flows 

and the maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities.

Cash flow forecasts are done on a weekly and monthly basis. they are tightly managed in order to 

accurately predict daily funding needs. Favourable interest rates on the current, call and investment 

accounts are negotiated with the banks.

the following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments 

and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

(in rand)
CARRyIng 
AMounts

ContRACtuAl 
CAsH flow

6 MontHs 
oR less

6 –12
MontHs

1 – 2 
yeARs

At 31 MARCH 2010

trade & other payables  574,646,742  574,646,742  574,646,742 —  —

other Forward exchange Contracts:

outflows −  2,509,966  2,509,966  2,509,966 — —

inflows −  —  —  — — —

577,156,708 577,156,708 577,156,708 — —

At 31 MARCH 2009

trade & other payables  686,818,283  686,818,283  686,818,283 — —

other Forward exchange Contracts:

outflows −  3,734,443  3,734,443  3,734,443 — —

inflows −  —  — — — —

690,552,726 690,552,726 690,552,726 — —

 c) Currency risk

Currency risk arises from exposure to foreign currencies when the value of the rand changes in relation to 

these currencies. Hedging instruments are utilised to hedge foreign currency exposures against exchange 

rate fluctuations. Where such instruments are not utilised, suppliers are required to take cover on import 

transactions. the company primarily transacts in uS dollar when dealing with foreign transactions. All 

foreign exchange balances have been covered at reporting date.
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the company’s exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on notional amounts:

us$

2010 2009

trade payables (uncovered portion) —  871,152 

Forward exchange Contracts  10,660,634  9,748,352 

net exposure  10,660,634  10,619,504 

the following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

AVeRAge RAte RepoRtIng spot RAte

2010 2009 2010 2009

uS$ 1 7.802 8.824 7.335 9.600

 Sensitivity Analysis

the company’s business policies require that all losses incurred should be recovered from the clients. 

therefore, a sensitivity analysis regarding currency risk is not provided.

 d) interest rate risk

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the company’s interest-bearing financial 

instrument was:

CARRyIng AMount

(in rand) 2010 2009

Fixed interest rate

Financial liability  10,400,170  15,600,250 

 Fair Value Sensitivity Analysis for Fixed rate instruments

the company does not account for any fixed rate financial liabilities at fair value through surplus and 

deficit, and the company does not designate derivatives (interest-rate swaps) as hedging instruments 

under a fair value hedge accounting model. therefore a change in interest rate at reporting date would 

not affect surplus or deficit.

 e) Fair Values of Financial instruments

the fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the 

Statement of Financial position are as follows:

2010 2009

(in rand)
CARRyIng 
AMount

fAIR  
VAlue

CARRyIng 
AMount

fAIR  
VAlue

fInAnCIAl Assets

trade & other receivables  767,614,404  767,614,404  891,895,168  891,895,168 

Cash & Cash equivalents 1,085,151,461 1,085,151,461  984,717,470  984,717,470 

1,852,765,865 1,852,765,865 1,876,612,638 1,876,612,638 

fInAnCIAl lIABIlItIes

trade & other payables  574,646,742  574,646,742  686,818,283  686,818,283 

loans payable  10,400,170  10,400,170  15,600,250  15,600,250 

other Forward exchange Contracts  2,509,966  2,509,966  3,734,443  3,734,443 

 587,556,878  587,556,878  706,152,976  706,152,976 

27.  relAteD pArtieS

 transactions with national Departments

the company is 100% owned by the government of South Africa represented by the Minister of public 

Service and Administration.

the company is a schedule 3A national public entity in terms of the public Finance Management 

Act,1999 (Act no.1 of 1999). the related party disclosures are in terms of the requirements of ipSAS 20 

(related party Disclosures) and the specific guidance given by the South African institute of Chartered 

Accountants.

related parties of the company consist of government departments, state-owned enterprises and 

other public entities in the national sphere of government and key Management personnel of the 

company and close family members of related parties. All transactions entered into with related 

parties are at arm’s length.         
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ReVenue foR tHe yeAR       
(in rand) 2010 2009

Crime & prevention Cluster  2,064,082,575  2,008,934,029 

economic & investment Cluster  267,811,461  255,639,837 

Government, Administration & international Cluster  189,804,825  170,780,274 

Social Cluster  343,528,531  448,412,141 

local & provincial  4,328,247  361,098 

revenue from related parties  2,869,555,639  2,884,127,379 

revenue from other parties  1,072,217,101  1,049,443,163 

revenue per Statement of Financial performance  3,941,772,740  3,933,570,542 

AMounts owed At yeAR-end

(in rand) 2010 2009

Crime & prevention Cluster 197,006,597 252,980,761

economic & investment Cluster 44,861,586 21,700,930

Government, Administration & international Cluster 69,252,123 90,917,007

Social Cluster 104,797,375 69,086,500

other related parties 135,090 190,743

total related parties  416,052,771  434,875,941 

Balance of trade receivables  340,502,414  436,341,654 

trade receivables  756,555,185 871,217,595

AMounts ReCeIVed In AdVAnCe At yeAR-end

(in rand) 2010 2009

Crime & prevention Cluster  326,705,105  101,180,591 

economic & investment Cluster  51,550,064  45,299,459 

Government, Administration & international Cluster  14,123,845  15,710,326 

Social Cluster  6,561,098  772,145 

other related parties  736,335  10,296 

total related parties  399,676,447  162,972,817 

Balance of income received in Advance  60,822,666  97,065,691 

income received in Advance per Statement  
of Financial position

 460,499,113  260,038,508

 transactions with Key Management personnel

the key Management personnel are Directors and executive Managers of the company for the year 

ended 31 March 2010.

transactions with key Management personnel are disclosed in Annexure A.

28.  operAtinG leASeS

 operating lease expense

the company entered into non-cancellable operating lease agreements for the occupation of certain 

premises and for the use of computer equipment. At the reporting date, the future minimum lease 

payments under these lease agreements were as follows:

(in rand) 2010 2009

less than 1 Year  31,753,639  36,922,864 

Between 1 & 5 Years  48,918,974  70,050,109 

More than 5 Years —  64,647 

 80,672,613  107,037,620 

 operating lease income

the company entered into non-cancellable operating lease agreements with tenants. At reporting date, 

the future minimum lease payments receivable under these lease agreements were as follows:

(in rand) 2010 2009

less than 1 Year  5,256,867  4,367,914 

Between 1 & 5 Years  201,653  471,395 

More than 5 Years  37,810  88,223 

 5,496,330  4,927,532 
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29.  ContinGent liABilitieS

A claim of r149 million has been instituted against the company and two national government 

departments. this matter arose out of a tender. Based on legal advice, the outcome of this claim cannot 

be determined with reasonable certainty. However, the matter is currently being handled by the State 

Attorney.

there are various other claims against SitA estimated at r22,794,514. Based on legal advice, the 

probability is not determinable as the ruling could go either way. the related estimated costs with regard 

to these claims approximate to r795,000.

A former employee has instituted a defamation claim against SitA amounting to r1 million. the estimated 

legal costs relating to this claim is approximately r80,000.

30.  StAnDArDS iSSueD, But not Yet eFFeCtiVe

At the date of approval of these Financial Statements, the following Standards and interpretations were 

in issue but not yet effective:

stAndARd / InteRpRetAtIon
ApplICABle  

to sItA

GrAp 18 Segment reporting n/A

GrAp 21 impairment of non-Cash-Generating Assets n/A

GrAp 23 revenue from non-exchange transactions (taxes & transfers) n/A

GrAp 24 presentation of Budget information in Financial Statements YeS

GrAp 25 employee Benefits YeS

GrAp 26 impairment of Cash-Generating Assets YeS

GrAp 103 Heritage Assets n/A

GrAp 104 Financial instruments YeS

ipSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial information n/A

ipSAS 23 revenue from non-exchange transactions n/A

ipSAS 24
presentation of Budget information in the Financial 
Statements

YeS

iFrS 2 Group & treasury Share transactions n/A

iFrS 4 insurance Contracts n/A

iFrS 7  (AC 144)
Financial instruments: Disclosures & the Amendment to iAS 1 
presentation of Financial Statements: Capital Disclosures

n/A

stAndARd / InteRpRetAtIon
ApplICABle  

to sItA

iFrS 8 operating Segments n/A

AC 503 Accounting for Black economic empowerment transactions n/A

iAS 1 (AC 101) presentation of Financial Statements YeS

iAS 23 (AC114) Borrowing Costs YeS

iAS 32    (AC 125)  
& iAS 1 (AC 101)

Financial instruments: presentation & presentation of Financial 
Statements: puttable Financial instruments & obligations 
arising on liquidation

n/A

iFriC 8 (AC 441) Scope of iFrS 2 Share Based payment n/A

iFriC 9 (AC 442) reassessment of embedded Derivatives n/A

iFriC 10 (AC 443) interim Financial reporting & impairment n/A

iFriC 11 (AC 444) iFrS 2 Group & treasury Share transactions n/A

iFriC 12 (AC 445) Service Concession Agreements n/A

iFriC 13 (AC 446) Customer loyalty programmes n/A

iFriC 14 (AC 447)
iAS 19 - the limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum 
Funding requirements & their interaction

n/A

31  irreGulAr expenDiture

(in rand) 2010 2009

opening Balance  19,022,955  10,401,243 

Add: irregular expenditure – Current Year  214,906,769    19,327,164  

less : Amounts Condoned —  (10,705,452)

less: Amounts not recoverable (not Condoned) — —

Total Irregular Expenditure 233,929,724  19,022,955 

Analysis of expenditure Awaiting Condonation per Age Classification

Current Year  214,906,769   19,022,955 

prior Years  19,022,955 —

Total 233,929,724  19,022,955 
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31.1 Details of irregular expenditure for Current Year

SitA’s disciplinary steps include an internal investigation to determine the appropriate management 

action and where warranted, disciplinarily action is instituted.

2010 InCIdents
dIsCIplInARy  
steps tAken

fInAnCIAl 
loss to tHe 
CoMpAny  AMount 

the recommendation Committee 1. 
exceeded its mandate when awarding a 
bid exceeding r30m without ratification 
by the Accounting Authority. Furthermore, 
an Addendum was added to the master 
agreement without approval by the 
Accounting Authority.

An internal audit investigation to 
determine the appropriate management 
action was conducted. no disciplinary 
action was initiated as the employee 
concerned resigned prior to the matter 
being detected.

nil  21,089,644 

Senior officials failed to extend a contract 2. 
in time with service providers to render 
services to a client resulting in irregular 
expenditure for a period of six (6) months. 

An internal investigation is being 
conducted to clarify the time involved 
in finalising the contract to determine 
the necessary management action to 
be instituted against SitA employees 
responsible for the negligence. 

nil 15,627,635

Senior officials failed to extend the contract 3. 
with service providers to render services to 
a client resulting in irregular expenditure for 
a period of twenty-nine  (29) months. 

An internal investigation is being 
conducted to clarify the time involved 
in finalising the contract to determine 
the necessary management action to 
be instituted against SitA employees 
responsible for the negligence. 

nil  6,355,087 

Senior officials failed to extend the contract 4. 
with a service provider for the maintenance 
of a client’s system resulting in irregular 
expenditure for a period of two (2) months. 

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken. 

nil  2,749,123 

Senior officials failed to extend the contract 5. 
with a service provider for the support of 
the client’s system. 

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken. 

nil  2,400,000 

Senior officials failed to extend the contract 6. 
between SitA and the service provider 
for the support of software resulting in 
irregular expenditure for a period of three 
(3) months. 

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken. 

nil  1,980,000 

A senior official failed to renew a contract 7. 
for the provision of spatial data, skills and 
services for a client.

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken. 

nil  1,911,320 

Senior officials failed to adhere to SitA’s 8. 
procurement regulations, policies and 
procedures (Sopp) in the procurement 
processes followed in relation to a request 
for Quotation (rFQ).

the official involved in the financial 
misconduct was subjected to a disciplinary 
action, which was concluded with a final 
written warning being issued against the 
official.

nil  1,477,869 

irregular expenditure was incurred when 9. 
products were added to an existing 
contract with a supplier without the 
necessary authorisation.

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken. 

undetermined  851,929 

irregular expenditure was incurred when 10. 
additional change management services 
were added within it projects (extension 
of the scope) for a client without the 
necessary authorisation. 

An internal investigation to determine 
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken. 

undetermined  526,425 

2010 InCIdents
dIsCIplInARy  
steps tAken

fInAnCIAl 
loss to tHe 
CoMpAny  AMount 

Senior officials failed to renew the lease 11. 
agreement for offices resulting in irregular 
expenditure for a period of three months 
prior to renewal of the lease agreement.

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken. 

nil  462,870 

Senior officials failed to adhere to SitA’s 12. 
procurement pegulations, policies and 
procedures (Sopp) when procuring services 
for the execution of erp architecture 
review recommendations, cross-module 
integration and customisations as well as 
change management. 

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken. 

undetermined  418,847 

Senior officials failed to extend the contract 13. 
for cleaning services at offices resulting in 
irregular expenditure for a period of two  
(2) months.

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken. 

nil  410,400 

Senior officials failed to renew the lease 14. 
agreement for an office building resulting 
in irregular expenditure for a period of four 
months prior to the conclusion of the rental 
agreement.

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken. 

nil  290,440 

Senior officials failed to extend the 15. 
maintenance agreement for data centres.

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken. 

nil  240,697 

Senior officials failed to renew the contract 16. 
for lAn connect services.

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken. 

nil  202,680 

Senior officials failed to extend the 17. 
maintenance contract for multiplexors. 

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken. 

nil  70,163 

Senior officials failed to comply with 18. 
procurement processes when procuring 
professional services and stress testing for  
a call centre.

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken. 

undetermined  34,250 

irregular expenditure was incurred for a 19. 
period of two months in respect of office 
cleaning services.

An internal audit investigation found 
negligence on the part of an official. 
Disciplinary action could not be instituted 
against the official as the official left the 
employ of the company.

nil  13,658 
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2010 InCIdents
dIsCIplInARy  
steps tAken

fInAnCIAl 
loss to tHe 
CoMpAny  AMount 

irregular expenditure was incurred relating 20. 
to installation and commissioning of a 
recorder for a call centre.

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken. 

undetermined  13,310 

Senior officials failed to extend a contract  21. 
for satellite safe services resulting in  
irregular expenditure for a period of two 
months. 

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken. 

nil  8,930 

An order was placed on a contract that 22. 
already expired.

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken.

undetermined 34,056

A sole supplier was engaged without  23. 
the necessary approval.

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken.

undetermined 9,274

professional and special services were 24. 
procured without following the  
procurement process.

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken.

undetermined 64,259

professional and special services were 25. 
procured without following the  
procurement process.

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken.

undetermined 142,963

professional and special services were 26. 
procured without following the  
procurement process.

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken.

undetermined 76,445

A supplier was engaged on the basis  27. 
of a contract that expired.

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action will 
be undertaken.

undetermined 25,380,344

Senior official exceeded his delegation of 28. 
authority by unilaterally entering into an 
agreement with a supplier without Board 
approval. the agreement provided for an 
advance payment, thereby creating an 
undue financial obligation for SitA.

An internal investigation to determine  
the appropriate management action is  
in progress.

undetermined 1,764,000

SitA procurement policies (Sppp and Sopp) 29. 
were contravened when a senior official 
signed a contract for the purchase of 
software for SitA and clients without  
Board approval.

Disciplinary action has been initiated 
against the responsible official who has 
subsequently been suspended.

undetermined 130,300,151

 214,906,769 

31.2  Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure

(in rand) 2010 2009

opening Balance  2,005,662 —

Add: Fruitless & Wasteful expenditure – Current Year  684,011  2,005,662 

less: Amounts Condoned — —

less: Amounts not recoverable (not Condoned) — —

fruitless & Wasteful Expenditure Awaiting 
Condonation

 2,689,673  2,005,662 

Analysis of expenditure Awaiting Condonation per Age Classification

Current Year  684,011  2,005,662 

prior Years  2,005,662 —

Total  2,689,673  2,005,662 

the fruitless and wasteful expenditure resulted from failure to claim VAt input of r466,480 and interest 

of r217,531 levied by a supplier on late payment.

32.  CASH FloW noteS

32.1  normal tax paid

(in rand) 2010 2009

opening Balance  (7,150,939)  74,240,626 

Current Year normal tax Charge —  71,881,665 

Closing Balance  96,321,270  7,150,939 

 89,170,331  153,273,230 
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32.2  reconciliation of net Cash Flows from operating Activities

(in rand) 2010 2009

net CAsH Inflow fRoM opeRAtIng ACtIVItIes

Surplus Before taxation  49,562,213  156,028,682 

AdJustMents foR non-CAsH flow IteMs:

Depreciation / Amortisation −  177,510,176  172,411,042 

impairment −  170,747  1,790,005 

increase in provision for impairment −  9,600,990  12,439,579 

loss on Disposal or Scrapping of property,   −
plant & equipment

 9,146,612  2,793,830 

increase in provision for   −
post-retirement Medical Benefits

 8,452,766  9,168,948 

other non-Cash Flow items −  (17,386)  (387,692)

Finance Costs paid −  41,247,089  43,367,841 

Finance income received −  (73,158,898)  (91,393,534)

(Decrease) in provisions −  (66,942,801)  (6,557,199)

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes  155,571,508  299,661,502 

woRkIng CApItAl CHAnges

Decrease / (increase) in trade & other receivables  114,679,774  (102,708,544)

(increase) in prepayments Made  (60,332,381)  (18,588,542)

(increase) in Work in progress  (48,049,391)  (3,732,208)

 ( Decrease) / increase in trade & other payables  (113,396,018)  64,887,936 

increase / (Decrease) in income received in Advance  200,460,605  (47,147,047)

Cash Generated from Operations  248,934,097  192,373,097 

normal taxation  (89,170,331) (153,273,230)

Finance Costs paid  (41,247,089)  (43,367,841)

Finance income received  73,158,898  91,393,534 

 191,675,575  87,125,560 

33.  reConCiliAtion oF BuDGet SurpluS / DeFiCit WitH tHe SurpluS / 

DeFiCit in tHe StAteMent oF FinAnCiAl perForMAnCe

(in rand) 2010 2009

net Surplus per the Statement of Financial performance  31,739,569  110,506,931 

Adjusted For:

Fair Value Adjustments −  116,915,954  138,495,818 

impairments recognised / reversed −  79,647,383  71,665,652 

(Deficit) on the Sale of Assets −  (9,146,612)  (2,793,830)

increases / Decreases in provisions −  (97,814,292)  (217,114,571)

leave pay provision −  11,735,502  10,118,643 

performance Bonus provision −  (66,942,801)  (6,557,199)

other −  (42,606,993)  (220,676,015)

Net Surplus / Deficit per Approved Budget  121,342,000  100,760,000

34.  reStAteMent oF CoMpArAtiVe inForMAtion

 the following comparatives have been restated in 2009/2010 to ensure better disclosure:

As pReVIously 
stAted

CuRRently  
stAted

tRAde & otHeR ReCeIVABles

trade receivables  888,160,725  891,895,168 

FeC liability —  (3,734,443)

 888,160,725  888,160,725 

tRAde & otHeR pAyABles

trade payables  669,877,775  673,612,218 

FeC liability —  (3,734,443)

 669,877,775  669,877,775 
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the following comparatives have been restated in 2009/2010 as a result of prior period errors that have 

been identified (refer to note 35):

As pReVIously 
stAted

CuRRently 
stAted

trade & other payables  673,612,218  690,552,726 

prior period error —  (16,940,508)

 673,612,218  673,612,218 

Accumulated Surplus  894,334,379  851,135,481 

prior period error —  60,029,015 

tax effect —  (16,830,117)

 894,334,379  894,334,379 

income received in Advance  216,950,001  260,038,508 

prior period error —  (43,088,507)

 216,950,001  216,950,001 

revenue  3,976,659,049  3,933,570,542 

prior period error —  43,088,507 

 3,976,659,049  3,976,659,049 

Cost of Sales  3,206,478,051  3,223,418,559 

prior period error —  (16,940,508)

 3,206,478,051  3,206,478,051 

tax receivable  (9,679,178)  7,150,939 

prior period error —  (16,830,117)

 (9,679,178)  (9,679,178)

income tax expense  62,351,868  45,521,751 

prior period error —  16,830,117 

 62,351,868  62,351,868 

35.  prior perioD error

During the year under review it came to the attention of Management that revenue was incorrectly 

accounted for in the prior year. the incorrect accounting treatment has subsequently been adjusted in 

the accounting records of the company. the effect of this correction is as follows:

2010 2009

reduction in opening Accumulated Surpluses1 —  43,088,507 

tax effect —  (12,117,684)

—  30,970,823 

Statement of Financial position effect

Adjustment Made to income received in Advance —  43,088,507 

Adjustment Made to tax receivable —  12,117,684 

Statement of Financial performance effect

Adjustment to revenue —  (43,088,507)

Adjustment to income tax expense —   (12,117,684)

— —

1. As a result of the applied correction.

During the year under review it came to the attention of Management that expenses which were incurred 

were not recognised in the accounting records. the incorrect accounting treatment has subsequently 

been adjusted in the accounting records of the company. the effect of this correction is as follows:

2010 2009

reduction in opening Accumulated Surpluses1 —  16,940,508 

tax effect —  (4,712,432)

—  12,228,076 

the Statement of Financial position effect

Adjustment Made to trade & other payables  —   16,940,508 

Adjustment Made to tax receivable —  4,712,432 

the Statement of Financial performance effect

Adjustment to Cost of Sales  —   (16,940,508)

Adjustment to income tax expense  —   (4,712,432)

— —  

1. As a result of the applied correction.

noteS to tHe AnnuAl FinAnCiAl StAteMentS – cont. 
For tHe YeAr enDeD 31 MArCH 2010
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Annexure A

DireCtorS’ eMoluMentS

(in rand at 31 March 2010)

posItIon
duRAtIon 

(MontHs endIng)
fees As 

dIReCtoR
ACtIng 

AllowAnCe
BAsIC  

sAlARy
AnnuAl 

pAyMent1

tRAVel 
AllowAnCes

petRol  
CARd

CoMpAny
ContRIButIons2

CoMMIssIons 
oR pRofIt 
sHARIng

sHARe 
optIons

otHeR
peRfoRMAnCe 

Bonus totAl

non-exeCutIVe dIReCtoRs

Chairperson

Ms Z p Manase 12 31-Mar-10  1,067,362 — — —  249 — — — — —  1,067,611 

Deputy Chairperson

Ms F C potgieter-Gqubulé 1 31-Mar-10 6,000 — — — — — — — — — 6,000 

BoARd MeMBeRs

Ms S V Bvuma 1 31-Mar-10  6,000 — — — — — — — — —  6,000 

Ms C B Clark 12 31-Mar-10 — — — — — — — — — — — 

Mr p r Kgame 1 31-Mar-10  6,000 — — — — — — — — —  6,000 

Mr C C W Kruger 12 31-Mar-10 — — — — — — — — — — — 

Mr A M luthuli 12 31-Mar-10  160,830 — — — — — — — — —  160,830 

Mr W S Mabena 1 31-Mar-10 — — — — — — — — — — — 

Ms M Makhekhe-Mokhuane 12 31-Mar-10 — — — —  24,960 — — — — —  24,960 

Ms B M Malongete 1 31-Mar-10 — — — — — — — — — — — 

Ms K Mdlulwa 1 31-Mar-10  6,000 — — — — — — — — —  6,000 

Ms n M Mhlakaza 1 31-Mar-10 — — — — — — — — — — — 

Ms t Moloko 1 31-Mar-10 — — — — — — — — — — — 

prof M i Mphahlele 1 31-Mar-10  6,000 — — — — — — — — —  6,000 

Ms K r Mthimunye 1 31-Mar-10 6,000 — — — — — — — — —  6,000

Mr D C niddrie 1 31-Mar-10 — — — — — — — — — — — 

Ms n ntsinde 1 31-Mar-10 6,000 — — — — — — — — — 6,000

Ms r Sekese 12 31-Mar-10 — — — — — — — — — — — 

Ms M o Williams 6 30-Sep-09 — — — — — — — — — — — 

 1,270,192 — — —  25,209 — — — — —  1,295,401 

1. the annual salary includes a 13th cheque and leave.
2.  Company contributions to pension, medical or insurance funds.

State employees that serve on the Board of Directors do not receive compensation from the company.
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posItIon
duRAtIon 

(MontHs endIng)
fees As 

dIReCtoR
ACtIng 

AllowAnCe
BAsIC  

sAlARy
AnnuAl 

pAyMent1

tRAVel 
AllowAnCes

petRol  
CARd

CoMpAny
ContRIButIons2

CoMMIssIons 
oR pRofIt 
sHARIng

sHARe 
optIons

otHeR
peRfoRMAnCe 

Bonus totAl

exeCutIVe CoMMIttee 
MeMBeRs

Acting Ceo

Mrs F pienaar 5 31-Aug-09 —  22,750  497,298  156,852  25,000 —  23,203 — —  438,223  1,163,326 

Mr e Khan (Ceo team) 12 31-Mar-10 —  62,242  797,045  20,000  192,000 —  65,103 — —  375,307  1,511,697 

Mr M Mtimunye (Ceo team) 12 31-Mar-10 —  73,634  1,059,600  24,242  107,676 —  1,512 — —  445,939  1,712,603 

Ms e r Magoma-nthite (Ceo team) 12 31-Mar-10 —  63,589  971,626  26,925  70,951 —  2,622 — —  389,491  1,525,204 

MeMBeRs

Mr B e ramfolo (Acting) 6 31-Mar-10 — —  660,000 — — — — — — —  660,000 

Mr A pedlar 7 31-oct-09 — —  846,288  288,614  70,462 —  59,007 — —  588,903  1,853,274 

Mr A pama (Acting) 12 31-Mar-10 —  41,357  968,344 —  96,000 —  1,293 — —  212,648 1,319,642

Mr A pretorius (Acting) 12 31-Mar-10 —  119,960  899,749 —  24,000 —  54,630 — —  192,112  1,290,451 

CoMpAny seCRetARy

Ms e Strydom 10 31-Jan-10 — —  628,175  29,303  17,500 — — — —  167,980  842,958 

—  383,532  7,328,125  545,936 603,589 —  207,370 — —  2,810,603 11,879,155

1. the annual salary includes a 13th cheque and leave.
2.  Company contributions to pension, medical or insurance funds.
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posItIon
duRAtIon 

(MontHs endIng)
fees As 

dIReCtoR
ACtIng 

AllowAnCe
BAsIC  

sAlARy
AnnuAl 

pAyMent1

tRAVel 
AllowAnCes

petRol  
CARd

CoMpAny
ContRIButIons2

CoMMIssIons 
oR pRofIt 
sHARIng

sHARe 
optIons

otHeR
peRfoRMAnCe 

Bonus totAl

CuRRent BoARd MeMBeRs

Chairperson

Ms t p C Chikane 4 03-Aug-08 223,455 — — — — — — — — —  223,455 

Ms Z p Manase 8 31-Mar-09 164,418 — — —  33,836 — — — — —  198,254 

Ms Z p Manase 4 03-Aug-08 450,407 — — — — — — — —  450,407 

BoARd MeMBeRs

Ms C B Clark 10 31-Mar-09 — — — — — — — — — — —

Mr C C W Kruger 12 31-Mar-09 — — — — — — — — — — —

Mr A M luthuli 10 31-Mar-09 134,288 — — — — — — — — —  139,288 

Ms M Makhekhe-Mokhuane 10 31-Mar-09 — — — —  30,510 — — — — —  30,510 

Ms n Molope 8 31-Jan-09 — — — — — — — — — —

Mr G rothschild 8 31-Jan-09 91,944 — — —  1,078 — — — — —  93,022 

Ms r Sekese 12 31-Mar-09 — — — — — — — — — — —

Ms A van der Merwe 8 31-Jan-09  97,944 — — — — — — — — —  97,944 

Ms M o Williams 12 31-Mar-09 — — — — — — — — — — —

Ms n Devcharran 10 31-Jan-09  250,374 — — —  30,910 — — — — —  281,284 

prof t Marwala 4 03-Aug-08  112,030 — — —  2,336 — — — — —  114,366 

1,529,860 — — — 98,670 — — — — — 1,628,530

exeCutIVe CoMMIttee 
MeMBeRs

Mr l Jones (ex – Ceo) 4 31-Jul-08 — —  656,000  594,001 — — — — — —  1,250,001 

Acting Ceo

Mrs F pienaar 8 31-Mar-09 — — — — — — — — — — —

MeMBeRs

Mrs F pienaar 12 31-Mar-09 —  53,083  1,077,174  30,000  60,000 —  132,826 — — —  1,353,083 

Ms e r Magoma-nthite 12 31-Mar-09 — —  848,286  26,925  70,951 —  153,838 — — —  1,100,000 

Mr e Khan 12 31-Mar-09 — —  715,184  20,000  192,000 —  172,816 — — —  1,100,000 

Mr A pedlar 12 31-Mar-09 — —  1,304,859  132,692  120,794 —  166,656 — — —  1,725,001 

Mr M M Mtimunye 12 31-Mar-09 — —  931,364  20,020  107,676 —  261,776 — — —  1,320,836 

Mr A pretorius (Acting) 12 31-Mar-09 — — — — — — — — — — —

—  53,083  5,532,867  823,638  551,421 —  887,912 — — —  7,848,921 

1. the annual salary includes a 13th cheque and leave.
2.  Company contributions to pension, medical or insurance funds.

Annexure A – cont.

DireCtorS’ eMoluMentS

(in rand as at 31 March 2009)
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ADMiniStrAtion

DireCtorAte 1 April 2009 to 31 MArCH 2010

nAMe & posItIon teRM & ContACt detAIls

full BoARd MeMBeRs

Ms Z p Manase Appointed as Chairperson with effect from 7 August 2008

Ms F C potgieter-Gqubulé Appointed on 17 March 2010

Ms S V Bvuma Appointed on 17 March 2010

Ms C B Clark Appointed on 19 May 2008 (resigned on 30 April 2010)

Mr p r Kgame Appointed on 17 March 2010

Mr C C W Kruger re-appointed on 1 September 2008

Mr A M luthuli Appointed on 19 May 2008

Ms M Makhekhe-Mokhuane Appointed on 19 May 2008 (resigned on 30 April 2010)

Ms K Mdlulwa Appointed on 17 March 2010

prof M i Mphahlele Appointed on 17 March 2010

Ms r Sekese Appointed on 15 october 2007

Ms M o Williams resigned on 30 September 2009

AlteRnAte BoARd MeMBeRs

Mr W S Mabena Appointed on 17 March 2010

Ms B M Malongete Appointed on 17 March 2010

Ms n M Mhlakaza Appointed on 17 March 2010

Ms t Moloko Appointed on 17 March 2010

Mr D C niddrie Appointed on 17 March 2010

CoMpAny seCRetARy

Mr e H odendaal Appointed as Acting Company Secretary on 1 February 2010

telephone +27 12 482-2923

e-mail ernst.odendaal@sita.co.za 

sItA AddResses

postal Address po Box 26100, Monument park, pretoria, 0105

physical Address 459 tsitsa Street, erasmuskloof, pretoria, 0048

AudItoRs

Auditor-General 271 Veale Street (new Building), new Muckleneuk, pretoria

BAnkeRs

Banking institute Standard Bank of South Africa limited

SHAreHolDerS’ DiArY

SCHeDuleS

eleventh Annual General Meeting 02 September 2010

Submission of Financial Statements and Annual report to  
the Minister of public Service and Administration

31 August 2010

Submission of Annual report to parliament September 2010

end of new Financial Year 31 March 2011

AnnuAl BuDGet 2010/11

Approval by the Board of Directors February 2011

Submission to DpSA March 2011

Submission to national treasury March 2011

StrAteGiC plAn 2010/11 to 2012/13

Approval by the Board of Directors September 2010 & March 2011

Submission to DpSA March 2011

Submission to national treasury March 2011

QuArterlY reportS

Submission to DpSA on a quarterly basis

Submission to DpSA August 2010
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noteSADMiniStrAtion – cont.

ContACt DetAilS oF exeCutiVe CoMMittee:

exeCutIVe CoMMIttee nAMe eMAIl telepHone

Acting Chief executive officer Ms n ntsinde helen.hammond@sita.co.za +27 12 482-2717

Acting Chief Audit executive Mr A r Alli razak.alli@sita.co.za +27 12 482-2466

Chief information officer Mr e Khan eghshaan.khan@sita.co.za +27 12 482-2674

Acting Chief Shared Services Mr M V tisani makhosi.tisani@sita.co.za +27 12 482-2353

Acting Chief Strategic Services Dr D J Mashao daniel.mashao@sita.co.za +27 12 482-2484

Acting Chief Business 
operations 

Mr l M A pama andile.pama@sita.co.za +27 12 482-2607

Acting Chief Financial officer Mr A pretorius andre.pretorius@sita.co.za
+27 12 482-2328

Acting Chief procurement & 
regulatory Affairs

Mr B e ramfolo bruce.ramfolo@sita.co.za +27 12 482-3217

WeBSite

www.sita.co.za

SWitCHBoArD

+ 27 12 482-3000
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noteS – cont.



SITA Erasmuskloof (Head Office)

Tel:+27 12 482 3000 

Fax: +27 12 482 2100

459 Tsitsa Street, Erasmuskloof, Pretoria, 001

iSBn  978-0-620-48706-2
rp248/2010 


